

TITLE

# TD & RM COVER SLIP

Reference No.:	KFI-RE-003
Revision: 1	Page: 1 of 1

Associated Procedure: KAA-767 REV ALLOC. CENTRE FOR OFFICE USE ONLY DOCUMENT NUMBER 0 TITLE KOEBERG NUCLEAR POWER STATION; QAULITY ASSURANCE DEPARTMENT NUCLEAR SAFETY CULTURE QA AUDIT REPORT - A104 (AU39424) DOCUMENT TYPE SECURITY CLASS ORIGINATOR / AUTHOR R Simons С ADDRESSEE TRIGRAMME (STATUS COMMENTS) R Bakardien REF. DATE (CCYYMMDD) KIS / SHELF LOCATION RETENTION PERIOD YEARS QA3.2.3 р 2020/07/15 REFERENCE NUMBERS A104 / au39424 ; 20-14rcs COVER SLIP COMPLETED BY DISTRIBUTION / COPIES Jessé Pillay R Bakardien S Bailey V Ntuli V Moduka B Gumede M Valaitham S Touffie C Bester L Lukwe T Jappie B Culligan L Chetty HARDCOPY H Lensink H Hall N Radebe E Viljoen DISC FORMAT A Stephanus K Pete M Petersen R Lavelot K Featherstone OTHER FOR OFFICE USE ONLY SCANNED REGISTERED

NO	TES	

For distribution only. Please return original report and copy of letter to QA. Thanking you.



**CHIEF NUCLEAR OFFICER:** 

Attention: R Bakardien

Date:

08 May 2020

Enquiries: R Simons

Tel +27 21 550 4383

Rowena.simons@eskom.co.za

Ref: 20-14 rcs

# NUCLEAR SAFETY CULTURE QA AUDIT REPORT – A 104 (AU 39424)

Thank you for your cooperation and assistance during the above mentioned audit. Please find attached the above report. The report contains 15 nonconformities, 19 observations and 5 good practices.

The audit activity was captured on Devonway as AU 39424.

The nonconformities were captured as Condition Reports, CR 113998 to CR11399, CR 114001 to CR 114013. Each CR requires a formal response by way of an assessment reports. The assessment report and agreed corrective actions will then be captured by the responsible line group and tracked to completion via Devonway.

The observations were captured on Devonway as General Actions, AU 39424-001 QA to AU 39424-019 QA. The General Actions require a formal response, to be captured on Devonway within sixty days from the date initiated. The resolution and closure of the General Actions rest with the assigned group.

The good practices were captured on Devonway as General Actions, AU 39424-020 QA to AU 39424-024 QA. Please note that there are no specific actions required for these general actions, but it is recommended that the areas of good practice be highlighted and shared within the organisation, thereby supporting continual improvement.

Please address all correspondence to the QA manager, for attention of the team leader-Rowena Simons at +27 21 550 4383.

Kind regards,

JBFLE

**QUALITY ASSURANCE MANAGER** 

CC: As per the distribution list on the report



# **KOEBERG NUCLEAR POWER STATION**

# QUALITY ASSURANCE DEPARTMENT **AUDIT REPORT**

# CONTROLLED DISCLOSURE

# A104 Nuclear Safety Culture (NSC) AU 39424

Revision:

0

Issue Date:

08 May 2020

Compiled by:

Team Leader

Reviewed by:

Independent QA Reviewer

Authorised by:

QA Manager

J Bele

#### Distribution:

R Bakardien

Chief Nuclear Officer

V Ntuli M Valaitham **GM KNPS** 

Plant Manager (Acting) SM Nuclear Engineering (Acting)

S Touffie T Jappie

SM Nuclear Project Management (Acting)

B Culligan

SM Nuclear Commercial

H Lensink

SM Nuclear Fuel

E Viljoen

Nuclear Oversight Manager (Acting)

A Stephanus M Petersen

K Featherstone

ISED Manager

Licensing Manager SM Nuclear Strategy and Regulation. S Bailey CAP Manager

V Moduka Nuclear Strategy and Regulation

N Gumede **Nuclear Engineering** 

C Bester ISED

R Lavelot

L Lukwe **Nuclear Engineering** 

L Chetty Nuclear Project Management

H Hall **Nuclear Commercial** N Radebe Nuclear Fuel

K Pete TD&RM

Nuclear Project Management

Controlled Disclosure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
,	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	2 of 68

# **Table of Contents**

1.	Executive Summary	ర
1,1	Introduction	3
1.2	Audit objective	3
1.3	Audit scope	3
1.4	Overview	3
1.5	Conclusion	4
2.	Audit Summary	6
2.1	Audit Methodology	6
2.2	Audit Sampling	6
2.3	Audit Criteria	7
2.4	Areas of Good Practice	8
2.5	Observations	9
2.6	Nonconformities	11
3.	Detailed Report	13
3.1	The Nuclear Operating Unit (NOU) Safety Management Programme	13
3.2	Koeberg Nuclear Power Station (KNPS)	
3.3	Nuclear Project Management (NPM)	26
3.4	Nuclear Commercial (NC)	31
3.5	Nuclear Engineering (NE)	36
3.6	Effectiveness Review of Previously Raised QA Nonconformities	41
4.1	Personnel interviewed during the audit process	42
4.2	Administrative Information	42
4.3	Disclaimer	42
4.4	Acknowledgement	42
4.5	Attachments	42

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	3 of 68

# 1. Executive Summary

#### 1.1 Introduction

This audit forms part of the Quality Assurance Monitoring Schedule (QAMS) for 2020.

## 1.2 Audit objective

The audit assessed compliance to the Quality Management System (QMS) and Koeberg Licensing Basis Manual (KLBM) requirements which impacts on the establishment and maintenance of the Nuclear Safety Culture (NSC) Programme across the Nuclear Operating Unit (NOU):

The following NSC process areas were evaluated in order to provide assurance that the NOU NSC programme and the related culture has been maintained, through continuous monitoring and improvement:

- The role and function of applicable Management Committees across the NOU in maintaining the required oversight of the NSC Programme;
- Functional area processes which establish, promote and support the implementation of various NSC Enhancement Plans;
- Monitoring of NSC Health across the NOU in order to support continuous improvement and enhancement of NSC.
- In addition, applicable stakeholder interfaces which may impact or be impacted by the NSC process, including interfaces with the National Nuclear Regulator (NNR), were evaluated.
- An effectiveness review of QA findings previously raised within the noted area was performed.

### 1.3 Audit scope

The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) for the following business areas (BAs) were assessed:

- Koeberg Nuclear Power Station;
- Nuclear Engineering;
- Nuclear Project Management;
- Nuclear Commercial.

The following exclusions were noted as part of this audit:

- The assessment of Supplier Safety Culture Enhancement Programmes have been excluded from the audit scope, as it was covered in QA audit A79 (2017), titled, Nuclear Supplier Management and will also be tested during QA audit A116, titled Steam Generator Replacement scheduled for execution in May 2020.
- The Nuclear Fuel Department has been excluded from this audit.

### 1.4 Overview

RD-0034 Rev 0, *Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations*, requires the implementation of Safety Culture (SC) principles within the framework of an Integrated Management System (IMS). The *Nuclear Safety Management Programme* as documented in 238-28 Rev 3 provides the minimum requirements and required framework to enable the NOU to comply with these and other regulatory requirements.

A total of five good practices, nineteen observations and fifteen nonconformities have been raised during this audit.

### 1.4.1 Nuclear Project Management SCEP

Although areas for improvement have been observed in this area, overall the NPM SCEP has been well maintained, which is evident in the number areas of good practice noted. These areas of good practice witnessed within NPM, can be attributed to sufficient time and resources being assigned to the management of the safety culture programme as well as staff involvement at all levels within the NPM organisation.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	4 of 68

The nonconformity raised in this area is related to noncompliance to record management requirements which are necessary to ensure the preservation and safeguarding of process records related to the SCEP. The observations noted in this area are deemed to be enhancements to an already mature NPM SCEP.

### 1,4.2 Koeberg Nuclear Power Station SCEP

In order to optimise business efficiency, an attempt to merge oversight committees within KNPS, have been made. These committees, which included the Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) and the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (also known as HPOC), have related but distinct mandates. Based on the collective audit findings observed in this area, it is however evident that merging these committees has potentially reduced the effectiveness of the HPOC and negatively impacted the SCSC fulfilling its stated mandate of overseeing the effective implementation of the KNPS NSC Plan.

Coupled with the reduced efficiency of HPOC, is the limited line-group trending analysis linked to job observations, and as a result the trending capability afforded by Devonway, in order to pre-empt human performance adverse trends has not been fully utilised.

The processes which enable the implementation, maintenance and enhancement of the Safety Culture programme, have a large number of procedures which were not controlled and certain assigned leadership roles were not implemented. Furthermore the use of uncontrolled forms, which have been developed to enable line groups to collect and analyse Devonway observation trend data effectively, has been noted.

#### 1.4.3 Nuclear Commercial SCEP

Although there is evidence of a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture procedure and plan having been established, anomalies were noted regarding the maintenance of the SCEP procedure and related management of records. Furthermore, instances were noted where certain assigned roles (Senior Manager and the Safety Culture & Human Performance co-ordinator) have not been implemented which has impacted compliance in various areas including the function of the NSC and HP oversight committee.

### 1.4.4 Nuclear Engineering SCEP

Evidence of a Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture & Human Performance plan as well as an Oversight Committee terms of reference were noted. However, anomalies regarding the identification and the related management of records as well as the management of meeting outputs, which would support Nuclear Engineering in demonstrating compliance in this area, have been observed.

### 1.5 Conclusion

Although nuclear safety culture committees have been established in each functional area assessed, across the Nuclear Operating Unit (NOU), shortcomings in the overall management of these committees and related roles have been noted, with the exception of the Nuclear Project Management Safety Culture Committee.

By not maintaining the basic functioning of these committees and ensuring the fulfilment of established and aligned mandates, the required control and oversight needed to ensure that planned SCEP initiatives meet their intended outcome, as it relates to nuclear safety culture enhancement, may not be achieved.

The three-yearly culture survey and the KOU annual self-assessments which are being implemented, enables Eskom to comply with specific regulatory requirements. It is therefore crucial that any gaps associated with these monitoring activities or resultant actions be attended to timeously in order to ensure regulatory compliance is maintained.

Furthermore these three-yearly culture surveys and the KOU annual self-assessments, support the Chief Nuclear Officer (CNO) in meeting his assigned role of keeping appraised of the nuclear safety culture health within the organisation on an annual basis. However in order to enable continuous monitoring of the health of nuclear safety culture, requires input from the various functional areas. As part of achieving continuous monitoring of nuclear safety culture, NEXCO has endorsed key performance indicators in June 2019. It is therefore recommended that implementation across the wider organisation be rolled-out, as undue delays may challenge the continuous monitoring of Nuclear Safety Culture, an established nuclear objective.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	5 of 68

Audit findings have also highlighted that not all functional areas have maintained the required process documentation or managed records appropriately in order to ensure that compliance can be demonstrated in the future. The extent of record management anomalies, particularly related to acceptable record storage and archiving practices have been observed in all of the functional areas assessed. Although these practices may not be deemed regulatory noncompliances, it is important to note that being able to demonstrate compliance to established SCEP processes is embedded in the regulatory requirements, documented in RD-0034 Rev 0 paragraph (22).

Regulatory prescription requires that the organisation ensure the implementation and maintenance of a nuclear safety culture programme to encourage a questioning and learning attitude to radiation protection and nuclear safety and to discourage complacency. Based on the anomalies identified across the various business areas, it can be concluded that the organisation has established a safety culture programme but has not consistently maintained and improved these established safety culture programmes.

Based on the findings collectively identified across the audit scope, the audit has been rated as Not Met

Note 1: Appendix 4.5.1 describes the activity rating descriptor applied in this report

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
•	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	6 of 68

# 2. Audit Summary

## 2.1 Audit Methodology

The audit was executed using the following activities to test process compliance:

- 2.1.1 Documentation reviews of all applicable standards, procedures, guides and authorised Quality Records Lists (QRLs)/ Record Retention Matrices (RRMs).
- 2.1.2 Relevant safety culture plans and records generated as part of the identified processes were reviewed.
- 2.1.3 Verification of Devonway actions stemming from various reports and/or regulatory correspondence was performed.
- 2.1.4 Verification interviews were performed with the various role players.
- 2.1.5 The following committee meetings which support NSC implementation were attended:
  - The Nuclear Project Management Safety Culture Committee (NPMSCC) meeting held on 2020-02-28
  - The Nuclear Executive Committee (NEXCO) meeting held on 2020-03-05.

## 2.2 Audit Sampling

Samples of the following items were assessed to determine the level of compliance to various processes outputs as they relate to NSC:

- 2.2.1 Minutes of Functional Area Management Committee meetings for the period 2017 to 2020;
- 2.2.2 NSC Annual Review reports for the period 2017 to 2019;
- 2.2.3 Functional Area Self-assessment reports for the period 2017 to 2019;
- 2.2.4 Functional Area Safety Culture Enhancement Plans and resolution of related actions for the period 2017 to 2020;
- 2.2.5 Regulatory actions noted in official correspondence (via letters / presentations / meeting minutes), including Devonway actions stemming from various reports and/or regulatory correspondence for the period 2017 to 2019.
- 2.2.6 Human Performance Observation and Coaching data obtained from the Devonway ObservationWay database and related reports.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	7 of 68

# 2.3 Audit Criteria

The audit has verified that high level requirements, such as statutory, regulatory and corporate requirements, have been cascaded into implementing processes listed below. In addition the Management Manuals of the applicable business areas were also reviewed. The following specific procedures were reviewed and evaluated:

	Doc	Rev	Title
2.3.1.	NIL-01	Var 19	Nuclear Installation Licence for Koeberg (Licence condition 21.3)
2.3.2.	RD-0034	0	Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations Section 6.1: Structure of an Integrated Management System Section 6.2: Safety Management System and Safety Culture Implementation Section 7.2: General Requirements (14, 15) Section 8.1.2: Management Commitment (33) Section 8.2.2: Management Priorities, Policy and System Planning (36) Section 11.1.2: Monitoring and Measurement (122)
2.3.3.	RG-0007	0	Regulatory Guide on Management of Safety (section 6.3)
2.3.4.	LD 1023	4	Quality Management requirements for Koeberg Nuclear Power Station
2.3.5.	36-197	2	Koeberg Licensing Basis Manual Annexure A: General Requirements; paragraph 3.1.6
2.3.6.	32-83	4	Eskom's Nuclear Policy
2.3.7.	240- 108035478	2	The Eskom Nuclear Objectives Section 2.3.3 – Organisational Effectiveness
2.3.8.	238-8	4	Nuclear Safety and Quality Manual (paragraph 7.1)
2.3,9.	238-6	4	Nuclear document and Records Management Requirement
2.3.10.	238-128	3	Management Review Standard (Appendix A, Typical Management Review Meeting Inputs)
2.3.11.	238-28	3	Nuclear Safety Management Programme
2.3.12.	KAA-850	0	Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme
2.3.13.	KGA-078	3	Coaching and Job Observation at Koeberg Nuclear Power Station
2.3.14.	KGA-097	5	Station Event-Free Clock Program
2.3,15.	331-243	2	Nuclear Engineering Management Review (paragraph 7.3.1)
2.3.16.	331-499	1	Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting ToR
2.3.17.	238-166	2	Nuclear Commercial Management Review Committee Terms of Reference (paragraph 9)
2.3,18.	238-165	1	Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure
2.3.19.	240- 119091328	5	Safety Culture Enhancement Programme
2.3.20.		4	Responsibilities of NPM Department and Key Function (paragraph 2.5.10)
2.3.21.	240- 119091486	4	Management Review (paragraph 8)

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	8 of 68

# 2.4 Areas of Good Practice

The following areas of good practice or control were observed during the audit:

AU 39424- 020 QA	<ul> <li>The Senior Manager: Nuclear Projects Management's commitment to establishing, executing and improving the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement Programme is commendable for the following reasons:</li> <li>The incumbent has encouraged active participation from staff at all levels of the organisation as part of the SCEP</li> <li>There is evidence that all human resources and management systems, procedures and processes necessary to implement and maintain a sustainable strong nuclear safety culture programme has been made available.</li> <li>There is evidence of establishing an open reporting culture, where events are treated as an opportunity to improve individual and organisational performance.</li> <li>Appointment letters for various role players participating in the NPMSCC has been noted which ensures that assignments and related roles are understood and accepted.</li> </ul>
AU	An area of good control has been observed in the management of the Nuclear
39424-	Project Management Safety Culture Plan.
021 QA	<ul> <li>The NPM Safety Culture plans are managed using MS Project which allows for revision details to be captured using multiple fields. The details include the period for which the plan has been developed e.g. FY2020. The specific plan revision is also captured e.g. 3T. Finally the specific review meeting where the changes were made or from which the changes stemmed from e.g. FY2020_10.</li> <li>There are therefore multiple areas were revision control is noted. The benefit of the system adopted by NPM to manage the updates to their plan has many benefits which</li> </ul>
	include: access to previous revisions; improved traceability of plan updates/changes as
	well as the ability to periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the NPM SC plan.
	<ul> <li>Access to the current NPM SC plan via Sharepoint. These plans are retained in PDF format thereby protecting the plans from unintended changes. The sample of plans reviewed was signed by the NPM SCEP co-ordinator and the initial plans for each financial year, has been signed by the Senior Manager, Nuclear Projects.</li> </ul>
AU	An area of good control has been observed in the management of the Nuclear
39424- 022 QA	Project Management Safety Culture Committee Meetings and overall staff involvement
	<ul> <li>The Senior Manager, Nuclear Projects, has nominated all his direct reports to chair the NPMSCC.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>A roster has been included in the SCP for this quarterly chairperson assignment. By rotating the Chairperson role, has enabled the Senior Manager, Nuclear Projects to assign specific nuclear safety culture responsibilities to senior NPM staff.</li> <li>The frequency of the NPMSCC meetings exceed that of any Safety Culture meeting</li> </ul>
	held in the various business areas reviewed during this audit across the NOU.  The quality of meeting minutes and action lists generated provide sufficient objective
	evidence that the committee is active and attempts to involve staff at all levels.
AU	There is no ambiguity related to roles and responsibilities assigned to personnel
39424-	who are involved in implementing the NPM SCEP.
023 QA	<ul> <li>The Senior Manager, Nuclear Projects, formally appoints various role players to manage different functions as it relates to the NPM BA SCEP process.</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>The responsibilities of the SCEP coordinator as well as all roles of various members</li> </ul>
	have been listed and are well defined in 240-119091288 Rev 4, Responsibilities and Authorities of Key Personnel Procedure.
AU	The overall oversight exhibited in managing SCEP action lists which are tracked at
39424- 024 QA	the monthly NPM SCC meetings was observed at the NPMSCC meeting held on 2020-02-28.
	In reviewing a sample of action lists for the 2019 period, provided evidence that all identified actions are tracked and monitored regularly by the chairperson of the NPMSCC.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
•	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	9 of 68

# 2.5 Observations

The following observations were recorded during the audit:

Number	Description	Responsible Group
AU 39424-001 QA	The establishment and integration of a security culture programme, as part of the overall nuclear safety programme, is not evident in the NOU IMS and has therefore not been cascaded into the safety programmes established by various business areas.	NOU
AU 39424-002 QA	In order to effectively implement the NEXCO endorsed nuclear safety culture health indicators which is needed to measure the status of the established Eskom Nuclear Objective, may require further consolidation and review in order to ensure that business area KPIs are aligned and are able to support this overall NOU health measurement.	NOU-
AU 39424-003 QA	The NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-28 Rev 3, has not documented in sufficient detail, the requirements assigned at the level of functional area to ensure consistent implementation and compliance to Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) requirements, when compared to revision 2 and revision 1 of the same document.	NOU
AU 39424-004 QA	The NOU Safety Culture forum does not retain meeting minutes or action lists thereby impacting the ability to demonstrate that various SC & HP practitioners have participated in a single NOU forum which may be key in promoting alignment as it relates to SCEP initiatives across the NOU.	NOU
AU 39424-005 QA	Specific leading and lagging indicators to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment, have not been defined in the Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-8 Rev 3 and has therefore has not been cascaded consistently into the Safety programmes established by various business areas.	NOU
AU 39424-006 QA	The current methodology applied during the compilation of the 2017 and 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture Self-assessment, has not incorporated or considered the IAEA industry guidance/best practice as it relates to the execution and follow-up of nuclear safety culture self-assessments.	NOU
AU 39424-007 QA	All the actions and recommendations identified during the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey as well as the 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment, have not been captured on Devonway as related items or additional actions.	NOU
AU 39424-008 QA	Resolution of certain actions and recommendations identified during the 2017 NSC self-assessment and reported in 2018 (SE 37932) have not been timeously completed, based on Devonway data reviewed.	NOU
AU 39424-009 QA	238-128 Rev 3, Management Review Standard has not documented sufficient detail regarding the record retention requirements to demonstrate compliance to ISO 9001:2015 and RD-0034 requirements.	Nuclear Strategy and Regulation

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	10 of 68

Number	Description	Responsible Group
AU 39424-010 QA	Clarity regarding the various types of safety culture plans adopted within KNPS and NOU is required to ensure that configuration is maintained and the current safety culture plan is always updated and accessible.	KNPS
AU 39424-011 QA	Based the 2019 HPOC Departmental Feedback forms reviewed, it is evident that emerging human performance issues are not identified using the trending mechanisms available through Devonway and guidance provided in KGA-078, Coaching and Job Observation at Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, in order to ensure that human performance strategies for improvement are determined.	KNPS
AU 39424-012 QA	Certain actions and recommendations identified during the common cause assessment (SE 38585) titled, Self-Assessment of Recent Plant Events Related to Human Performance, have not been loaded on Devonway, based on the Devonway data reviewed	KNPS
AU 39424-013 QA	Reference to a KNPS document, KGA-093, which has been withdrawn since 2013-02-19, has been noted in 240-119091328 Rev 5, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (for NPM) which was authorised in September 2019.	Nuclear Project Management
AU 39424-014 QA	Insufficient detail regarding the SC Health assessments planned and executed were included in the FY2019 and FY2020 NPM SC plans.	Nuclear Project Management
AU 39424-015 QA	The frequency of the NPM Safety Culture Committee meetings have not been defined in 240-119091328 rev 5, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (for NPM)	Nuclear Project Management
AU 39424-016 QA	Resolution of Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan actions, have not been timeously completed.	Nuclear Commercial
AU 39424-017 QA	The impact of withdrawing the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement procedure 331-8 Rev 0, while ensuring compliance to SCEP requirements, may not have been holistically assessed.	Nuclear Engineering
AU 39424-018 QA	It is uncertain how often the NE Safety culture plans for the period 2017 to 2019 have been updated since no revision/version control has been applied for NE SC and HP plan	Nuclear Engineering
AU 39424-019 QA	There is potential risk that the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee may not meet the due date of end of March for completing the self-evaluation, whereby its performance and effectiveness for the period April 2019 to March 2020 will be assessed.	Nuclear Engineering

Note: The detailed observations are captured in an appendix 4.5.17.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
•	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	11 of 68

# 2.6 Nonconformities

The following nonconformities were raised:

Number	Description	Criteria	Responsible Group	Rating
CR113998	Certain Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Procedures, required for implementing the Nuclear Safety Culture Enhancement and Human Performance Programmes, have passed their next review dates	238-6 Rev 4	ISED	2
CR113999	Records related to the Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and the Management Review process for Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, have not been indexed on an authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix and subsequently have not been archived.	238-6 Rev 4	ISED	3
CR114001	There is no evidence that the Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) meetings have been held as required.	KAA-850 Rev 0	ISED	3
CR114002	The minimum number of Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) meetings (also known as HPOC) was not held during the period 2017 to 2019.	KGA-097 Rev 5	ISED	1
CR114003	The Koeberg Safety Culture Plan for 2019- 2020 is not accessible from the specified location on the G:drive as required by KAA- 850 Rev 0, Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme.	KAA-850 Rev 0	ISED	1
CR114004	The Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Terms of Reference and the HPOC Departmental Feedback form have not been managed as controlled documents.	238-6 Rev 4 KSA-011 Rev 14	ISED	2
CR114005:	The Power Station Manager has not led the Safety Culture Forum, which consists of his direct reports, in order to assess the health of safety culture.	KAA-850 Rev 0	ISED	2

j	or surcty	Culture,		
	NC rating legend  Nonconformity has a significant impact on process objectives	Nonconformity has a material impact on process objectives	2 Nonconformity has a immaterial impact on process objectives	1 Nonconformity has a negligible impact on process objectives

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	12 of 68

Number	Description	Criteria	Responsible Group	Rating
CR114006	Certain Nuclear Commercial Procedures, required for implementing Nuclear Safety Culture, has passed their next review dates.	238-6 Rev 4	Nuclear Commercial	2
CR114007	The quarterly Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings have not been held since 2015.	238-165 Rev 1	Nuclear Commercial	3
CR114008	Certain roles and responsibilities assigned to the Nuclear Commercial Senior Manager, related to the implementation and oversight of the Nuclear Safety Culture Programme, have not been implemented as required.	238-165 Rev 1	Nuclear Commercial	3
CR114009	Records related to the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) and the Management Review process for Nuclear Commercial, have either not been identified or appropriately indexed, as required.	238-8 Rev 4 KSA-038 Rev 5	Nuclear Commercial	1
CR114010	Records for Nuclear Project Management (NPM), related to the Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and the Management Review Committee (MRM), have not been indexed on the authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix.	238-6 Rev 4	Nuclear Project Management	2
CR114011	Records required to demonstrate that the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) has been implemented or reviewed, has either not been identified, appropriately indexed or archived as required.	238-8 Rev 4	Nuclear Engineering	2
CR114012	Not all the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee quarterly meetings have been held for the period, April 2019 to March 2020, as required.	331-499 Rev1	Nuclear Engineering	1
CR114013	There is no evidence that the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson has endorsed the action lists stemming from the Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings for the period April 2019 to March 2020.	331-499 Rev1	Nuclear Engineering	2

NC rating legend

4 Nonconformity has a significant impact on process objectives

3 Nonconformity has a material impact on process objectives

2 Nonconformity has a immaterial impact on process objectives

1 Nonconformity has a negligible impact on process objectives

Note: The detailed nonconformities are captured in appendices 4.5.2 to 4.5.16.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
,	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	13 of 68

# 3. Detailed Report

RD-0034 Rev 0, Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations, requires the implementation of Safety Culture (SC) principles within the framework of an Integrated Management System (IMS). To achieve this requirement, the Regulator requires that the licensee develop and implement a Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP), which must provide the framework for implementing the aspects of SC within the licensee organisation. Within the Nuclear Operating Unit (NOU), The Nuclear Safety Management Programme as documented in 238-28 Rev 3 provides the minimum requirements and required framework to enable the NOU to comply with these and other regulatory requirements.

## 3.1 The Nuclear Operating Unit (NOU) Safety Management Programme

- 3.1.1. During the preparation phase of this audit, a document review was performed to determine whether a sample of applicable regulatory and business requirements have been integrated into 238-28 Rev 3, The Nuclear Safety Management Programme. In addition, 238-28 was also assessed in order to determine whether sufficient prescription has been provided to ensure that all BAs are able to appropriately implement a BA Safety Culture Enhancement Programme that would meet a sample of selected regulatory requirements. The following criteria selected was applied during the documentation review of this audit:
- 3.1.1.1 RD-0034 Rev 0, Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations:
  - Paragraph (122) requires that a systematic process for monitoring safety culture within level 1
    organisation's must be established, using suitable leading and lagging indicators, and
    qualitative information (for example findings from self-assessments, NNR and independent
    reviews).
  - Paragraph (22) requires that the organisation must ensure that records are retained to furnish
    evidence of activities affecting quality and safety. These records must be readable, complete,
    identifiable, classified, stored and easily retrievable. Retention times of records must be
    defined.
- 3.1.1.2 RG-0007 Rev 0, Regulatory Guide on Management of Safety (section 6.3 Safety culture)
  - Paragraph 6.3.4 requires that all organisations involved in implementing nuclear security measures should give due consideration in accordance with NNR requirements and guidance [8] to the development and maintenance nuclear security culture recognizing the synergies between nuclear safety and nuclear security.
- 3.1.1.3 IAEA General Safety Requirements (GSR) Part 2, Leadership and Management for Safety (section 5 Culture for Safety) requires the following:
  - Paragraph (f) notes the means by which the organisation seeks to enhance safety and to foster
    and sustain a strong safety culture, and using a systemic approach (i.e. an approach relating to
    the system as a whole in which the interactions between technical, human and organisational
    factors are duly considered);
  - Paragraph (h) requires the exchange of ideas between, and the combination of, safety culture and security culture.
- 3.1.1.4 IAEA Safety Guide GS-G-3.5, *The Management System for Nuclear Installations* (Self-assessment of safety culture paragraph 6.35 to 6.37) prescribes the following:
  - The self-assessment of safety culture should include the entire organisation.
  - A designated team representing all organisational levels and functions at the installation should carry out the self-assessment.
  - A specialist in safety culture should be included in the team for ensuring that appropriate
    assessment tools are developed and applied, as well as for carrying out an analysis of the
    results (including a statistical analysis of the results of questionnaires) and their interpretation.
  - The self-assessment team should receive training in how to develop the assessment tools and in the steps to be considered in the assessment process.
  - The focus groups should include cross-functional representatives and/or representatives from an organisational unit. There should be enough focus groups to obtain a realistic assessment of the entire organisation.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	14 of 68

 A follow-up assessment should be performed, account being taken of the time needed for improvement actions to have their full effect on the safety culture.

Likewise, a sample of business requirements, impacting the NOU SCEP was also selected, and the integration of these requirements into the NOU SCEP, was also tested. The criteria applied during this part of the documentation review were as follows:

- 3.1.1.5 32-83 Rev 4, Eskom's Nuclear Policy notes the following:
  - Paragraph 2.1 Policy Statement Promote a strong nuclear safety and security culture through the development and reinforcement of good safety attitudes and behaviour in individuals, leaders and teams, emphasising nuclear safety over competing goals to ensure protection of people and the environment.
  - Paragraph 2.2. Policy Principles Demonstrate leadership in safety matters at the highest organisational level by implementing and continually improving an integrated management system that combines all the elements of safety, quality, health, the environment, security, and safety culture in a manner that safety is not compromised by other requirements, that are applicable to all nuclear activities;
- 3.1.1.6 240-108035478 Rev 2, *The Eskom Nuclear Objectives* (Organisational Effectiveness Leadership and management)
  - Paragraph 2.3.3 requires management to ensure the availability of adequate resources, foster an open trusting environment that promotes a healthy Nuclear Culture (Safety and Security).
  - Paragraph 2.3.3 states that Insights gained from the annual Nuclear Culture assessment which
    provides an indication of the prevailing organisational culture, and the resultant enhancement
    plan.
- 3.1.1.7 238-14 Rev 2, Security Measures for Nuclear Power Stations and Facilities
  - Paragraph 11 notes that a programme shall be implemented to establish and enhance a nuclear security culture as part of the overall nuclear safety programme.

Based on the documentation review, these specific requirements were tested during the execution phase of the audit by assessing the areas listed in table 1, with reference to the Nuclear Safety Management Programme and the specific business area SCEPs. The above requirements noted in section 3.1.1 of this report are cross referenced in the table 1 below.

Table 1:

	Requirement	NOU	KNPS	NPM	NC	NE
1.	Is there evidence that security culture has been integrated into the Nuclear Safety Management Programme? Refer to 3.1.1.2, 3.1.1.3 & 3.1.1.7.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
2.	Has sufficient detail been incorporated into 238-28 Rev 3, <i>The Nuclear Safety Management Programme</i> to ensure the integration of security culture into the individual BA SCEPs? Refer to 3.1.1.2, 3.1.1.3 & 3.1.1.7.	as an informative reference, there is no			o ıment.	
3.	Besides the insights gained from the annual Nuclear Culture assessment which provides an indication of the prevailing organisational culture, and the resultant enhancement plan, is there evidence that specific key performance indicators (KPIs) have been established and implemented to measure the prevailing organisational culture? ? Refer to 3.1.1.1.	NEXCO endorse d KPIs 2019	Items noted as part of HPOC	12/11 KPIs specific to NPM is evident	CAP related items	CAP related items
4.	Has sufficient detail been incorporated into 238-28 Rev 3, <i>The Nuclear Safety Management Programme</i> to ensure the integration of these key performance indicators (KPIs) into the individual BA SCEPs? Refer to 3.1.1.1.	KPIs have not been documented in 238-28 Rev 3, The Nuclear Safety Management Programme				

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
,	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	15 of 68

	Requirement	NOU	KNPS	NPM	NC	NE
5.	Have the annual Nuclear Safety Culture (NSC) self-assessments used to assess the prevailing organisational culture, been implemented according to regulatory guidance or prescription as listed below:	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.1.	The self-assessment of safety culture should include the use of leading and lagging indicators. Refer to 3.1.1.1.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.2.	The self-assessment of safety culture should include the entire organisation. Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.3.	A designated team representing all organisational levels and functions at the installation should carry out the self-assessment. Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.4.	A specialist in safety culture should be included in the team for ensuring that appropriate assessment tools are developed and applied, as well as for carrying out an analysis of the results (including a statistical analysis of the results of questionnaires) and their interpretation. Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.5.	The self-assessment team should receive training in how to develop the assessment tools and in the steps to be considered in the assessment process. Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not Tested	Not Tested	Not Tested	Not Tested	Not Tested
5.6.	The focus groups should include cross- functional representatives and/or representatives from an organisational unit. There should be enough focus groups to obtain a realistic assessment of the entire organisation. Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.7.	A follow-up assessment should be performed, account being taken of the time needed for improvement actions to have their full effect on the safety culture Refer to 3.1.1.4.	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident	Not evident
5.8.	Has sufficient detail been incorporated into 238-28 Rev 3, <i>The Nuclear Safety Management Programme</i> to ensure that the regulatory guidance or prescription, including the use of leading and lagging indicators are implemented during the NSC self-assessments performed within various BAs? Refer to 3.1.1.1.	KAA-850 Rev 0 is the only SCEP document which defines the type of leading and lagging indicators to be applied during the annual NSC self-assessments.  238-28 Rev 3 does not define the type of leading and lagging indicators to be applied during the annual NSC self-assessments.			lagging nual e of applied	
5.9.	Have specific records been identified and related retention periods, whether permanent (P) or non-permanent (NP) been specified to ensure compliance can be demonstrated to established SCEP processes as required by RD-0034 Rev 0 paragraph (22). Refer to 3.1.1.1.	Only Safety Cultur e Plan noted	Recor d (P)	Recor d(NP) two years	No record	No record
6.	Has sufficient detail been incorporated into 238-28 Rev 3, <i>The Nuclear Safety Management Programme</i> to ensure that records required for demonstrating compliance to established SCEP processes are retained across BAs? Refer to 3.1.1.1.	238-28 Rev 3 only notes the NOU Nuclear Safety Culture Plan in section 2.7, Related/Supporting Documents. No minimum retention period has been documented.				

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	16 of 68

Based on the number of anomalies noted in table 1, which could impact continued regulatory compliance, the following observations have been raised:

**AU 39424-001 QA:** The establishment and integration of a security culture programme, as part of the overall nuclear safety programme, is not evident in the NOU IMS and has therefore not been cascaded into the safety programmes established by various business areas.

AU 39424-002 QA: In order to effectively implement the NEXCO endorsed nuclear safety culture health indicators which is needed to measure the status of the established Eskom Nuclear Objective, may require further consolidation and review in order to ensure that business area KPIs are aligned and are able to support this overall NOU health measurement.

**AU 39424-005 QA:** Specific leading and lagging indicators to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment, have not been defined in the Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-8 Rev 3 and has therefore has not been cascaded consistently into the Safety programmes established by various business areas.

**AU 39424-006 QA:** The current methodology applied during the compilation of the 2017 and 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture Self-assessment, has not incorporated or considered the IAEA industry guidance/best practice as it relates to the execution and follow-up of nuclear safety culture self-assessments.

**AU 39424-007 QA:** All the actions and recommendations identified during the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey as well as the 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment, have not been captured on Devonway as related items or additional actions.

**AU 39424-008 QA**: Resolution of certain actions and recommendations identified during the 2017 NSC self-assessment and reported in 2018 (SE 37932) have not been timeously completed, based on Devonway data reviewed.

3.1.2. During the audit, NSC programme outputs generated, for the period 2017 to 2019 were tested for compliance to the NOU SCEP requirements. The outputs tested included the NSC plans, NSC self-assessments and relevant meeting minutes and action lists. Refer to section 2.2 of this report for a detailed list of outputs tested.

During this period multiple revisions of 238-28 were authorised. Even though compliance was assessed using the latest authorised revision, a comparison between revisions 1, 2 and 3 of 238-28 was completed to determine if compliance has been impacted by the differences in detail noted in these applicable revisions of 238-28 during the 2017 to 2019 period when the applicable revisions were enforced. The following inconsistencies were noted in the various functional areas:

- The management of SCEP records across the functional areas differed between functional areas. Examples have been noted where no records are being identified and maintained to instances where various records are being classified as either permanent or non-permanent.
- The understanding and resultant implementation of the annual Safety Culture self-assessment by individual functional areas were inconsistent. Certain groups rely on the KOU self-assessment and seldom identify applicable actions stemming from these self-assessments, while other functional areas perform focused Safety culture assessments and identify appropriate actions for the specific functional area, thereby enhancing the safety culture plan and SCEP of the functional area.
- The application of key performance indicators across the functional areas were also noted as inconsistent or not aligned in order to support a wider NOU NSC health measurement.
- Gaps have been noted that apply to the establishment and implementation of the Safety Culture Forum at the NOU level, which may assist in ensuring alignment to SCEP requirements across the NOU.
- Furthermore it was noted that all previous prescriptions regarding Level 1 suppliers and their sub-suppliers, documented in the previous revisions of 238-28, have now been omitted from the current revision.

To highlight the above-mentioned anomalies, the following observation has been raised:

AU 39424-002 QA: The NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-28 Rev 3, has not documented in sufficient detail, the requirements assigned at the level of functional area to ensure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	17 of 68

consistent implementation and compliance to Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) requirements, when compared to revision 2 and revision 1 of the same document,

During the audit it was also observed that evidence to demonstrate that the NOU Safety Culture forum had convened, could not be provided. As a result the functioning and mandate of the NOU Safety Culture forum, which had been documented in 238-28 Rev 2, could not be tested. Based on the inconsistencies observed across the functional areas, as part of implementing the BA SCEPs, it was noted that convening this forum regularly may improve alignment of the safety culture initiatives across the NOU. To highlight this anomaly and potential benefit, the following observation has been highlighted:

**AU 39424-004 QA:** The NOU Safety Culture forum does not retain meeting minutes or action lists thereby impacting the ability to demonstrate that various SC & HP practitioners have participated in a single NOU forum which may be key in promoting alignment as it relates to SCEP initiatives across the NOU.

3.1.3. Finally as part of the holistic review of committees assessing NSC, the various Management Review meetings convened across the NOU were also assessed to determine whether NSC forms part of a typical management review meeting agenda. Individual anomalies identified have been recorded in the relevant BA sections of this report.

In general however it was observed that the retention periods for management review meeting records are inconsistent across BAs, which has resulted in inconsistent record storage practices across the NOU and potentially impacts compliance with ISO 9001:2015 (section 9.3.3) and RD-0034 Rev 0 (paragraphs 45 and 22). It was also noted that the *Management Review Standard*, documented in 238-128 Rev 3 does not specify in sufficient detail the record retention requirements to demonstrate compliance to the previously mentioned sections of ISO 9001:2015 and RD-0034 Rev 0. To highlight this anomaly, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-009 QA**: 238-128 Rev 3, Management Review Standard has not documented sufficient detail regarding the record retention requirements to demonstrate compliance to ISO 9001:2015 and RD-0034 requirements.

- 3.1.4. During the audit, the following aspects listed below were assessed to determine compliance to specific management system requirements and NOU prescription documented in 238-28 Rev 3 *Nuclear Safety Management Programme*:
  - Establishment and Maintenance of the SCEP (including the NSC Plan);
  - Control of Safety Culture Enhancement programme (via Committees);
  - Roles and Responsibilities related to the control of the Safety Culture Enhancement Programme:
  - Monitoring of the NSC Health (SCEP and BA safety culture plan);
  - Feedback and Continual Improvement which support enhancement of the SCEP;
  - · Records Management.

The listed aspects will be discussed for each BA assessed in the sub-sections that follow.

# 3.2 Koeberg Nuclear Power Station (KNPS)

The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme for KNPS is documented in KAA-850 Rev 0, *Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme*, which was authorised on 2013-12-24. This procedure was noted as the main criteria applied in assessing compliance in this area.

3.2.1. Establishment and Maintenance of the KNPS SCEP (including the NSC Plan)

In this area, both the Safety Culture Enhancement procedure and the available NSC plans were assessed to determine if they were valid and up to date. In addition, the configuration of these plans and related actions were also assessed by reviewing identified storage locations and available Devonway data, respectively.

3.2.1.1 Concerning to the Safety Culture procedure, it was noted that KAA-850 Rev 0, *Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme* had not been reviewed since its initial authorisation in 2013 and has passed its next review date of December 2016.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	18 of 68

It was also noted that a number of additional procedures that enable or support the execution of the SCEP, have passed their next review dates. These procedures are as follows:

- KGA-097 Rev 5, Station Event-Free Clock Program, authorised 2013-12-24, has passed its next review date of 2019-06-02. (level 4)
- KGA-053 Rev 4, Self-Assessment at Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, authorised 2012-01-26, has passed its next review date of 2018-01-26. (level 4)
- 238-129 Rev 0, Nuclear Operating Unit Self Assessments, authorised 2012-03-20, has passed its next review date of 2014-11. 238-129 Rev 0 is noted as a level 2 document.
- It was also noted that KGA-076, Rev 3a, *Performing Trending & Trending Analysis*, authorised 2013-09-18, has passed its next review date of 2016-06-27. (level 4), however a corrective action, has been registered on Devonway (See CR98837-001CA).

When controlled documents are not reviewed timeously, there is a risk of process noncompliance, as practices may have evolved from authorised processes. To highlight these anomalies, the following nonconformity has been raised:

CR113998: Certain Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Procedures, required for implementing the Nuclear Safety Culture Enhancement and Human Performance Programmes, have passed their next review dates

3.2.1.2 The validity and currency the NSC plans were reviewed according prescription noted in KAA-850 Rev 0. According to paragraph 5.9.1, the SCP is to be kept current and be accessible from the following location: <u>G:\Koeberg\ISED\NSEG\NUCLEAR SAFETY\Nuclear Safety Enhancement Steering Committee.</u>

The following anomalies were observed:

- It was not possible to retrieve the current NSC plan from the specified G\drive location. It was confirmed that in practice, NSC plans are not saved in the specified G\drive location and as a result the current NSC plan for 2019-2020, was not retrievable from this location during the preparation phase of the audit.
- It was also noted that when the KNPS safety plans were initially requested, two different Excel spreadsheets were provided to the auditor, depicting KNPS safety culture plans 2018-2019.

The first plan which was titled, KNPS Nuclear Safety Culture Plan 2018-2019 (Rev 0a) noted seven elements such as: Safety Culture Awareness and Communication; Individual Awareness/Questioning Attitude; Safety Leadership; Audits and Reviews (Internal and External); Safety Culture Surveys and Monitoring; Continuous Improvement (Learning from Events); Control of Safety Culture Enhancement (Safety Culture Steering Committee).

The second plan which was also titled, *Nuclear Safety Culture Plan-Koeberg Power Station* 2018/2019, contained Nuclear safety culture report actions for the following categories: Organisational, Leadership and Individual categories

• It was also noted that revision/version control has not been consistently captured on a sample of KNPS safety plans provided during the audit. As a result of revision/version control not being applied, it is uncertain whether the 2019-2020 KOU safety culture plan has been kept current and it was difficult to determine when the plan was last updated.

The overall configuration of the plan may be challenged since the latest safety culture plan was not stored in the required location and revision/version control has not been consistently applied. To highlight these anomalies, the following nonconformity and observation have been raised:

CR114003: The Koeberg Safety Culture Plan for 2019-2020 is not accessible from the specified location on the G:drive as required by KAA-850 Rev 0, Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme.

**AU 39424-010 QA:** Clarity regarding the various types of safety culture plans adopted within KNPS and NOU is required to ensure that configuration is maintained and the current safety culture plan is always updated and accessible.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	19 of 68

#### 3.2.2. Control of the KNPS Safety Culture Enhancement programme (via Committees)

The control of the Koeberg Nuclear Safety Enhancement programme via specific committees as documented in KAA-850 Rev 0, was assessed by evaluating the following two committees and its related functions:

- The Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) shall oversee the execution of the KNPS Safety plan.
- The Safety Culture forum shall lead an annual process of safety culture self-assessment, thereby ensuring a management review is performed to assess the health of safety culture.

As part of this evaluation, the following were assessed:

- · Frequency of executed meetings;
- Quorum of the meetings;
- Execution of documented mandates.
- 3.2.2.1 The execution of the Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) meetings according to KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraph 5.9.1, require the following:
  - The Safety Culture Steering Committee shall meet monthly to discuss the status of the SCP activities according to the agreed plan.
  - The SCSC meeting shall be chaired by either the Power Station Manager (PSM), the Plant Manager, the ISED Manager or one of the HODs, unless designated otherwise by the PSM. The HODs of all the main line departments are expected to attend the SCSC meeting.

Based on the objective evidence available at the time of the audit, following has been determined:

- The required monthly SCSC meetings have not been held since September 2018.
- There is no evidence that actions noted on NSC plans are monitored by the SCSC.
- Besides the unsigned action list titled, 'Nuclear Safety Culture Plan' meeting which was convened on 10 September 2018, no additional evidence could be provided of the existence and functioning of the Safety Culture Steering Committee. This functioning includes, the relevant meeting quorum being met and the execution of the documented mandate for the period post September 2018.

When the defined Safety Culture Steering Committee meetings are not held, the required monitoring and oversight of safety culture plan actions may not be achieved. To highlight this anomaly, the following nonconformity has been raised:

CR114001: There is no evidence that the Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) meetings have been held as required.

The details of the Safety Culture Forum (SCF) meeting execution will be discussed in section 3.2.3, which elaborates on the roles and responsibilities associated with the control of Safety Culture Enhancement Programme.

# 3.2.3. Roles and Responsibilities related to the control of the KNPS Safety Culture Enhancement Programme

In assessing compliance in this area, two key functions were consistently tested across each BA evaluated, namely the role of the senior manager and appointed SCEP role players who are key in implementing relevant SCEP initiatives.

According to KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraph 5.1.2, the following are required of the Power Station Manager:

- Establishment and maintenance of a healthy safety culture in the functional area. The
  responsibilities include developing and implementing plans to achieve this, as well as
  demonstrating the behaviours necessary to foster a healthy safety culture within the KNPS,
  including:
- Developing a SCP that will detail specific initiatives aimed at strengthening safety culture in the Functional Area.
- Allocating sufficient organisational resources, such as budget, time and staff, to give effect to the SCP.

#### Controlled Disclosure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	20 of 68

- Establishing a SCSC in the functional area, that is charged with monitoring the effective implementation of the SCP.
- Leading an annual process of safety culture self-assessment by means of the Safety Culture Forum (SCF).
- Assigning a staff member or staff members with adequate seniority and status to the role of Safety Culture Practitioners or Co-ordinators to assist in the development and implementation of the SCP.

Two anomalies linked to the execution of the Power Station Manager roles and responsibilities have been observed as follows:

- 3.2.3.1. The establishment of the Safety Culture Steering Committee (SCSC) has been noted but the continued execution of this meeting has not been evident. This anomaly was, discussed in the previous section.
- 3.2.3.2. The execution of the Safety Culture Forum (SCF) meetings, according to KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraph 5.9.2, require the following:
  - The Safety Culture Forum shall convene on an annual between September and November, consisting of the PSM, his direct reports and others as relevant.
  - The SCF shall reflect on the health of the safety culture by applying prescribed inputs.
  - A Safety Culture report shall be produced which will serve as input for the discussion and evaluation of the KNPS SCEP.

In reviewing the annual Safety Culture report produced for the periods 2017 and 2018, it was observed that there was a lack of documented evidence of the Safety Culture Forum convening annually during the periods of September to November. There was no evidence that the Safety Culture Forum (consisting of the PSM and his direct reports) had convened to assess the safety culture health. The specific review results highlighted the following:

- The annual safety culture assessment report, SE 37932 for 2017 reported on in 2018 noted only one team member besides the compiler of the self-assessment report.
- The annual safety culture assessment report, SE 38462 for 2018 reported on in 2019 noted only one team member besides the compiler of the self-assessment report.
- There is no evidence that the head of departments has provided input into the annual process of safety culture self-assessment by means of the Safety Culture Forum.
- · No details have been recorded of focus groups participating in the annual assessments.

When leadership do not fulfil their assigned responsibilities associated with implementing and maintaining the safety culture enhancement programme, including the relevant monitoring, the required environment to promote and foster a healthy safety culture, may be negatively impacted. To highlight this anomaly, the following nonconformity has been raised:

CR114005: The Power Station Manager has not led the Safety Culture Forum, which consists of his direct reports, in order to assess the health of safety culture.

- 3.2.3.3. No anomalies were noted concerning the responsibilities assigned to the Safety Culture Practitioner or Co-ordinator function residing within ISED.
- 3.2.4. Monitoring of the KNPS NSC Health (SCEP and BA safety culture plan)

In reviewing KAA-850 Rev 0, it was noted that specific key performance indicators (KPIs) used to measure the NSC health within the BA, has not been defined and documented. Due to this lack of documented prescription, and the failure of the Safety Culture Forum to meet, who is tasked to review and reflect on the health of safety culture, it was noted that the only probable way to measure or assess the current health of NSC would be to use the results of the three—yearly culture survey. This statement was corroborated during a number of audit verification interviews.

It was noted that in an ISED presentation to the Regulator, dated 1 November 2019, a number of KPIs which would be used to monitor the health of NSC within the NOU, were communicated. It was also noted that these KPIs were endorsed by NEXCO. The indicators noted are as follows:

- Staff Engagements
- Observation Programme Health (focus on Paired Observations)
- CAP Health

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
•	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	21 of 68

- · Leadership Programme
- Self-Assessment Programme Health
- Nuclear Safety Concern

It was confirmed that these KPIs were presented at the 4<sup>th</sup> June 2019 NEXCO meeting. It was also noted that to date, the endorsed KPIs have not been implemented within the KNPS BA and across the wider NOU. As a result a NSC health measure, which applies the NEXCO endorsed KPIs, was not evident

It was also noted in Table 1 of this report that varying KPIs are being applied within the various BAs sampled and as it stands, alignment across the BAs would be required to ensure a collective NSC health measure could be achieved. To highlight the shortcomings noted above, the following observation, previously mentioned in section 3.1 of this report, was raised.

**AU 39424-002 QA:** In order to effectively implement the NEXCO endorsed nuclear safety culture health indicators which is needed to measure the status of the established Eskom Nuclear Objective, may require further consolidation and review in order to ensure that business area KPIs are aligned and are able to support this overall NOU health measurement.

3.2.5. Feedback and Continual Improvement which support enhancement of the KNPS SCEP

KAA-850 Rev 0, paragraph 5.8.1.3 notes that the creation of the SCEP and the maintenance of the SCP will facilitate continuous improvement of the safety culture within KNPS. While paragraph 5.8.1, notes key aspects required to support feedback and continual improvement of the SCEP, which may include applying actions, such as: event reporting, operating experience (OE) and the implementation of self-assessments of programs and processes to identify gaps and opportunities for improvement.

In this area the following aspects were assessed for compliance and effectiveness:

- The Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Process documented in KGA-097 Rev 0.
- The use of event reporting, particularly as relates to Observations and coaching.
- The use of Operating experience (OE).
- The implementation of self-assessments of programs and processes to identify gaps and opportunities for improvement.
- 3.2.5.1 In order to holistically evaluate continual improvement which supports enhancement of the SCEP in this area, the implementation of the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Process documented in KGA-097 Rev 0 was assessed, as this committee is required to identify emerging human performance issues, and determine strategies for improvement which directly impact NSC.

In the same way the other committees noted in this report were assessed, the NSEC was evaluated using the following criteria:

- Frequency of executed meetings for the period 2017 to 2019;
- Quorum of the meetings for the period 2017 to 2019;
- Execution of documented mandates.

According to KGA-097 Rev 5, Station Event-Free Clock Program, paragraph 5.2.4, the NSEC meeting shall be held on a monthly basis with a minimum of 10 meetings per year. Furthermore, in paragraph 5.2.5 it notes that the NSEC meeting will be chaired by the ISED Manager, unless designated otherwise by the PSM. While paragraph 5.2.6 notes the NSEC quorum as the chairman and at least six (6) represented departments from Maintenance, Operating, Plant Engineering, Radiation Protection, Chemistry and Nuclear Services (mandatory attendance) with optional attendance by Work Control, ISED, Outage and Training.

The following anomalies were noted:

- The minimum number of the NSEC meetings were not held during the period 2017 to 2019.
- Minutes of Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings, which were provided to the auditor, were not reviewed or signed by the relevant manager.

When the minimum NSEC meetings are not held, opportunities to identify improvement strategies to enhance human performance issues may not occur.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	22 of 68

CR114002: The minimum number of Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) meetings (also known as HPOC) was not held during the period 2017 to 2019.

- 3.2.5.2 Based on the documented prescription for continual Improvement of the established SCEP, the following areas were reviewed for effective implementation as part of the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Process documented in KGA-097 Rev 0:
  - Event reporting, focusing particularly on job observations and related trending.
  - The application of OE, particularly Human performance type OE.

Regarding event reporting, with particular focus on job observations and related trending, a total of ninety-three *HPOC Departmental Feedback* forms were reviewed. In addition, Obsevationway was interrogated for the same period, in order to determine if the available trend data was appropriately assessed and used in identifying both potential adverse trends and useful operational experience.

It was observed that the process of collecting and forming meaningful insights from observation cards may have been negatively impacted by line groups bypassing Devonway controls when entering *full stops* (.) instead of the expected value-adding information in the comment field. This practice was pervasive in the groups assessed during this review. It has also been noted that the Devonway portal can facilitate effective trending but when attention to detail and information is deliberately omitted, the data recorded may not fully support meaningful data analysis.

In isolation this shortcoming may not be significant, but since the CAP/ NSEG trending capacity is currently limited and the station quarterly trend report or similar report is not being compiled, there may be an over-reliance on the Station CAR process, to identify adverse trends and not optimising the capability of Devonway trending functionality.

It was also observed that KAA-828 Rev 0, *Trending at Koeberg Power Station* has been withdrawn on 2019-02-27 which potentially may further diminish the trending capability/function provided by NSEG. To highlight this anomaly, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-011 QA:** Based the 2019 HPOC Departmental Feedback forms reviewed, it is evident that emerging human performance issues are not identified using the trending mechanisms available through Devonway and guidance provided in KGA-078, Coaching and Job Observation at Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, in order to ensure that human performance strategies for improvement are determined.

In reviewing the ninety-three HPOC Departmental Feedback forms, it was also observed that the information captured by managers may not always indicate whether the behaviour observed is regarded as positive or negative and therefore it is not clear whether observed behaviour requires correction or whether the behaviour observed should be commended and integrated across the wider organisation. It was also observed that the current HPOC Departmental Feedback form does allow for related information to be captured, however what may be lacking is the critical review and assessment of the Observation data available when completing these forms.

Further review of the ninety-three HPOC Departmental Feedback forms, also highlighted that two different versions of the *HPOC Departmental Feedback* forms have been applied by various line groups for the period January 2019 to January 2020 as follows:

- Revision 3 Applied by Operating and the Outage Management groups
- Revision 2 Applied by Chemistry, Nuclear Services, Maintenance Execution, Radiation Protection, Training and System Engineering (Group names as noted on the completed feedback forms)

A notable difference between revision 3 and revision 2 of this form is the addition of the field, *Human: Technical Ratio, which allows for HPOC* to monitor this key ratio as part of identifying emerging human performance issues. Further review of the *HPOC Departmental Feedback* forms, highlighted that these forms have not been processed as controlled document as follows:

- There is no unique reference assigned
- The electronic master is not available and maintained on the EDMS.
- The paper master is not stored and preserved with the document controlling body.

Similarly to HPOC Departmental Feedback forms, the NSEC meeting Terms of Reference has also not been managed as a controlled document as multiple word revisions for the Nuclear Safety

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	23 of 68

Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Terms of Reference were provided to the auditor during the preparation and execution phases of the audit, e.g. Rev 3 dated 2017-07-20 and Rev 4 dated 2017-09-20. In addition, a word version of the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Steering Committee Terms of Reference (Rev 2) was also provided.

Based on these documents not being managed as controlled documents, line groups were applying out-dated forms and omitting information required for the specific HPOC purpose. In addition, distributing outdated Terms of Reference documents for certain committees may result in out-dated mandates being applied by relevant personnel. To highlight this anomaly the following nonconformity has been raised:

**CR114004:** The Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Terms of Reference and the HPOC Departmental Feedback form have not been managed as controlled documents.

3.2.5.3 KAA-850 Rev 0, paragraph 5.8.1.4, requires that self-assessments of programs and processes to identify gaps and opportunities for improvement be used to continually improve safety culture within KNPS. In order to assess compliance in this area a sample of self-assessments were selected to determine if related actions have been captured and tracked on Devonway.

According to a Devonway Query performed on 2020-03-11, following details were noted for the 2017 NSC self-assessment:

- Certain actions associated with the self-assessment completed in 2017 have not all been closed and are indicated as overdue on Devonway. The following two actions have been noted as overdue:
- SE 37932-006 GA (Raised: 2018-11-13 & with due date 2019-04-30) Assess current proficiency levels in all areas across the NOU. (SGM)
- SE 37932-007 GA (Raised: 2018-11-13 & with due 2019-04-30) Develop and Implement customised leadership training to address the following behaviours: Accountability, Trust and Respect (ISE DR)

According to the same Devonway query, the following two actions remain open with noted dues dates in the future:

- SE 37932-003 GA (Raised: 2018-11-13 & with due date: 2020-03-31): Develop and implement change management as it relates to the formalised structures. (PSM)
- SE 37932-005 GA (Raised: 2018-11-13 & with due date: 2020-05-31): Develop and Implement formalised handover process as it relates to stand-in/acting management positions (PSM).

Based on the fact that the actions remain unresolved for an extended period of time (16 months), the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-008 QA:** Resolution of certain actions and recommendations identified during the 2017 NSC self-assessment and reported in 2018 (SE 37932) have not been timeously completed, based on Devonway data reviewed.

According to a Devonway Query performed on 2020-03-11, the following details were noted for the 2018 NSC self-assessment (SE 38462):

- The 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment, SE 38462, titled NOU Nuclear Safety Culture 2018 report was initiated and closed on 2019-06-11.
- No actions have been loaded on Devonway even though six strategic actions were recorded in the report. A link to the report has been provided in Devonway.
- There is no evidence that the relevant manager would be able to determine if all actions identified during the 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment report, have been tracked to completion based on the Devonway data available.

Although the 2016 Culture survey was executed by an external supplier and may not be regarded as a self-assessment, it was noted that the survey was captured as a self-assessment on Devonway. The following Devonway details apply to the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey:

- SE35153 titled, Focused SE 57722 Nuclear Safety Culture assessment (NNR Progress report 2016) ISED was initiated on 2015-08-06 and closed 2017-06-06.
- No actions have been loaded on Devonway even though ten recommendations were recorded in the report.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
,	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	24 of 68

 A second entry for the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey captured as SE 57722 was noted. SE 57722 titled, Nuclear Safety Culture assessment (NNR Progress report 2016) was initiated and closed on 2016-04-11.

In order to ensure actions are appropriately assigned and tracked to completion may necessitate raising these actions, whether general or corrective in nature on Devonway. When actions are not visible to the wider organisation and the assigned owners, the organisation may be challenged in tracking these actions during implementation up until appropriate closure.

Furthermore if actions are not loaded on the Devonway database, the validation of actions closed and the follow-up effectiveness review of these actions may not be possible as recommended by the IAEA Safety Guide GS-G-3.5, *The Management System for Nuclear Installations* which proposes that a follow-up assessment should be performed taking into account the time needed for improvement actions to have their full effect on the safety culture.

During the audit, the ISED manager stated that these self-assessment actions were being tracked on Devonway using *LI* actions. However due to time constraints, the auditor was unable to verify the validity of this statement.

To highlight the anomalies associated with the 2016 Culture survey and the 2018 NSC self-assessment, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-007 QA:** All the actions and recommendations identified during the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey as well as the 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment, have not been captured on Devonway as related items or additional actions.

Note that the ISED manager had agreed to provide this information during the reporting phase of the audit but to date, the related *LI* numbers have not been provided.

It is also important to note that in regulatory correspondence regarding the 2017 NSC culture report (K-25415-E, dated 15 April 2019) in response to a Regulatory Specific Comment (SC-4), Eskom noted that the intent of a NSC report is to document the results of the assessment and that actions associated with the report are detailed as per all investigations on Devonway and the status can be obtained at any stage. It is QA's opinion that the noted Eskom response to the Regulator would apply not only to the 2017 NSC self-assessment but also to the 2018 Self-assessment and possibly the 2016 and 2020 Culture survey report/results.

3.2.5.4 Finally, the common cause assessment (SE 38585) stemming from a request from the Station CAR meeting, which was initiated on 2019-07-19 and closed on 2019-10-21, was reviewed in order to verify that all identified actions have been identified and are tracked to completion on Devonway.

Based on a comparison of the actions documented in the self-assessment report, which was endorsed by the Plant and/or ISED Managers, and the report generated from Devonway (2020-03-02 and 2020-03-11), it was evident that the actions and related action owners, for the items below, were not captured on Devonway.

- Actions 6.1 to 6.9 Referring to groups performing a needs analysis on HP training for their specific group (Due date: 2019-12-15).
- Action 7- Amend HP KPI's to reflect input from the HP forum, PSC forum and PSR forum (Due date 2020-01-31).
- Action 8- Appoint a station HP custodian (Due date: 2019-12-15).

Although the resolution of these actions was not verified by the auditor, it was confirmed during the verification interview with the ISED manager that these actions were still required and the resolution of these actions were still pending.

It is important to note that actions associated with self-assessments, whether general or corrective in nature, are required to be appropriately assigned on DW in order to ensure actions are tracked to completion. When actions are not visible to the wider organisation and the assigned owners, the following impact may be experienced:

- The assigned action owners are unaware of actions and related expectations.
- The organisation may not be able to continuously track actions during implementation up until
  appropriate closure.

#### Controlled Disclosure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	25 of 68

 Furthermore if actions are not loaded in such a database as Devonway, the validation of actions closed and the follow-up effectiveness review of these actions may not be possible.

To highlight the above-mentioned anomaly, the following observation has been raised:

AU 39424-012 QA: Certain actions and recommendations identified during the common cause assessment (SE 38585) titled, Self-Assessment of Recent Plant Events Related to Human Performance, have not been loaded on Devonway, based on the Devonway data reviewed.

### 3.2.6. KNPS Records Management

Records generated as part of the Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, which is required to ensure that compliance can be demonstrated in the future, was assessed by verifying compliance to KAA-850 Rev 0 and 238-6 Rev 4 requirements.

- 3.2.6.1 According to KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraphs 7.1 to 7.3 the following documented outputs have been identified as permanent records:
  - The SCP for each year is to be kept as permanent records.
  - The Safety Culture Survey results are to be kept as permanent records.
  - The Annual Safety Culture report was noted as a permanent record.

In addition, 238-6 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement, requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.1 specifies that records shall be managed by indexing identified records on a Records Retention Matrix (240-43723778). Furthermore, maintaining the Records Retention Matrix on a continual basis and reviewing it at prescribed intervals, is required.
- Paragraph 5.4 requires that in instances where BAs store their own records, they shall request a waiver from TD&RM.

The following anomalies were identified in this area:

- The following permanent records, identified in KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraph 7.1 to 7.3, have not been indexed on the authorised QRL dated 2015-12-14, for the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Group (NSEG) and therefore these records have not been archived since the authorisation of KAA-850 Rev 0. These records are as follows: the safety culture survey results; the annual safety culture report and the safety culture plans.
- The above reports and plans were retrievable from various ISED individuals but were not managed as 'in-section' records. It has been confirmed by TD&RM that no waiver request for 'in-department/section' storage has been received from NSEG.
- The latest authorised QRL for NSEG was last reviewed on 2015-12-14.
- 3.2.6.2 In assessing the oversight exercised by management over the BA SCEPs, minutes of Management Review meetings were also reviewed to determine if a NSC element was included in the noted agenda items as documented in 238-128 Rev 3 Management Review Standard (Appendix A, Typical Management Review Meeting Inputs)

As part of the KNPS review, it was evident that the KNPS Management Review meeting minutes have not been indexed on an authorised Quality Record Listing (QRL) and as a result no KIS location has been noted for this particular record. As a result of this anomaly, there is no evidence that the KNPS Management Review meeting minutes have been transmitted to TD&RM. In addition, it was confirmed by TD&RM that no waiver request for in-section storage had been received from the Independent Safety Evaluation Department (ISED).

When records are not indexed and subsequently archived as required, the necessary protection and retrievability of these records may be compromised. To highlight the noted anomalies, the following nonconformity has been raised:

CR113999: Records related to the Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and the Management Review process for Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, have not been indexed on an authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix and subsequently have not been archived.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	26 of 68

## 3.3 Nuclear Project Management (NPM)

The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme for NPM documented in 240-119091328 rev 5, *The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme*, was authorised in September 2019, and is noted as the main criteria applied in assessing compliance in this area. In addition, 240-119091288 Rev 4, *Responsibilities of NPM Department and Key Function* was also applied as audit criteria.

### 3.3.1 Establishment and Maintenance of the NPM SCEP (including the NSC Plan)

In this area, both the Safety Culture Enhancement procedure and the available NSC plans were assessed to determine if they were valid and up to date. In addition, the configuration of these plans and related actions were also assessed by reviewing identified storage locations and available Devonway data, respectively.

3.3.1.1 The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme for NPM which is documented in 240-119091328 rev 5, *The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme*, was authorised in September 2019 and remains current. A minor discrepancy was however noted in the current revision of 240-119091328, where a withdrawn procedure, KGA-093 was still referenced in paragraph 2.2.2 and as part of the Informative references and in the body of the document, paragraph 3.1 dealing with Individual Awareness/Questioning Attitude. KGA-093 was withdrawn on 2013-02-19. To highlight the above-mentioned anomaly, the following observation was raised:

**AU 39424-013 QA:** Reference to a KNPS document, KGA-093, which has been withdrawn since 2013-02-19, has been noted in 240-119091328 Rev 5, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (for NPM) which was authorised in September 2019.

3.3.1.2 In assessing the validity and currency of the NSC plans, it was stated by the SCEP co-ordinator that the established safety culture plan is aligned with Eskom's financial year. This was confirmed by reviewing safety culture plans for the period, FY2019 and FY2020

In reviewing the various versions of the NPM Safety culture plan, it was noted that actions were identified within the following framework:

- Staff engagement sessions- NSC awareness;
- Training;
- Safety Culture Meetings;
- Monitoring.

It has been confirmed that the SCP has been updated on an annual basis and periodically, which is evident in the revision status of the plans reviewed.

In particular, the NPM Safety Culture plans are managed using MS Project which allows for revision details to be captured using multiple fields. The details captured included: the period for which the plan has been developed e.g. FY2020; the specific plan revision e.g. 3T; as well as the specific review meeting where the changes were made or from which the changes stemmed from e.g. FY2020\_10.

Based on the information captured on the plan, there were multiple areas where revision control was noted. The benefit of the system adopted by NPM to manage the updates to their plan has many benefits which include: access to previous revisions; improved traceability of plan updates/changes as well as the ability to periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the NPM SC plan.

Furthermore, access to the current NPM SC plan via Sharepoint was possible. These plans are retained in PDF format thereby protecting the plans from unintended changes. The sample of plans reviewed was signed by the NPM SCEP co-ordinator and the initial plans for each financial year has been signed by the Senior Manager, Nuclear Projects.

It was noted that the process for updating the NSC plan is as follows: Changes are proposed to NPM Senior Manager who would concur. Changes are then effected by a planner/ SCEP co-ordinator, who is also a project manager and has access to the required (MS Project) application.

Based on the practices implemented in managing the NPM SC plan, an area of good control has been observed as follows:

**AU 39424-021 QA:** An area of good control has been observed in the management of the Nuclear Project Management Safety Culture Plan.

#### Controlled Disclosure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	27 of 68

3.3.2 Control of the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement programme (via Committees)

The control of the NPM Safety Enhancement programme via the *Nuclear Project Management Safety Culture Committee* (NPMSCC) as documented in 240-119091328 Rev 5, was assessed as follows:

- · Frequency of executed meetings;
- Quorum of the meetings;
- · Execution of documented mandates.
- 3.3.2.1 Concerning the frequency of executed meetings, according to the SCEP Co-ordinator, the NMPSCC meetings are held on a monthly basis (2nd Friday of each month). At the time of the audit, for the year-ending 2020, a total of nine meetings had been held. It was confirmed, using a sample of meeting minutes that a meeting had been held each month from April 2019 to February 2020 with the exception of July 2019 and December 2019. It was also noted that the frequency of these meetings have not been explicitly defined and documented in 240-119091328 Rev 5. To highlight this anomaly, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-015 QA;** The frequency of the NPM Safety Culture Committee meetings have not been defined in 240-119091328 rev 5, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (for NPM).

Even though this area for improvement has been noted, it is recognised that the frequency of the NPMSCC meetings exceeded that of any other safety culture committee meeting held in the various BAs reviewed during this audit. This has been noted as an element of the good practices observed and has been discussed later in this section.

3.3.2.2 With regards to quorum of the NPMSCC and the level of staff involvement, according to procedure, 240-119091328 Rev 5, the committee should comprise of personnel from across the NPM BA, thereby encouraging staff participation in safety culture activities. The required quorum consist of three principals (NPM), 1 principal (SGR) and the Chairperson.

During the February 2020 NPMSCC meeting held in the Koeberg NPM VC boardroom on Friday, 2020-02-28, the following was observed by the audit team:

Staff involvement by personnel from across the NPM BA was evident. The personnel attending the meeting were from all levels of staff and also included personnel from the Steam Generator Replacement project. Active participation from all staff members attending the meeting was noted while a questioning attitude was evident among staff resulting in robust discussion on a number of topics.

It was also noted that the, Nuclear Projects Senior Manager, has nominated all his direct reports to chair the NPMSCC meetings on a rotational basis. This was confirmed by reviewing appointment letters, the sample of meeting minutes reviewed and the NPM SC Plan, where a roster has been included for chairperson quarterly assignments. Additional members of the meeting have also appointed and their respective roles and responsibilities have been documented in 240-119091328 Rev 5, Appendix C and 240-119091288 Rev 4, Responsibilities of NPM Department and Key Function.

As a result of these roles and responsibilities being clearly defined, assigned and monitored, the following areas of good practice has been noted:

AU 39424-022 QA: An area of good control has been observed in the management of the Nuclear Project Management Safety Culture Committee Meetings and overall staff involvement

AU 39424-023 QA: There is no ambiguity related to roles and responsibilities assigned to personnel who are involved in implementing the NPM SCEP.

3.3.2.3 Regarding the execution of the NPMSCC documented mandate, according to 240-119091328 Rev 5, the NPMSCC is a committee focused on overseeing the implementation of the SCEP and improving safety culture within NPM and to ensure compliance with 238-28 and RD-0034. It is also required that this committee monitors the overall status of safety culture within the NPM.

During the February 2020 NPMSCC meeting held in the Koeberg NPM VC boardroom on Friday, 2020-02-28, the following was observed by the audit team:

- The KPI report was presented by the SCEP Co-ordinator to the NPMSCC.
- The NPM SC Plan was presented by the SCEP Co-ordinator to the committee.
- Improvement initiatives were highlighted by various members of the meeting.

### Controlled Disclosure

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	28 of 68

 Any new actions identified during the NMPSCC meeting and existing actions were discussed and tracked.

In reviewing the action list tabled at the same NPMSCC meeting held as well the action lists populated over the 2019-2020 period, it was observed that certain actions have been extended at least twice since being initiated, resulting in these actions remaining open for an extended period of time. This condition is the exception and not the norm when compared to the majority of the actions listed.

Based on the sample meeting minutes and action lists reviewed, sufficient objective evidence has been provided to demonstrate that the committee is active and involves staff at all levels. Assurance can therefore be provided that the documented mandate of the NPM SCC has been executed.

3.3.3 Roles and Responsibilities related to the control of the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement Programme

As part of assessing compliance in this area, two key functions were consistently tested across each BA evaluated, namely the role of the senior manager and appointed SCEP role players key in implementing relevant SCEP initiatives.

According to 240-119091288 Rev 4, Responsibilities of NPM Department and Key Functions, the following requirements are noted:

- 3.3.3.1 Paragraph 3.1 requires that the NPM Senior Manager have the overall accountability for the management of safety culture. In order to achieve the specific outputs, the SCEP co-ordinator has been appointed and delegated the following responsibilities, as noted in paragraph 2.5.10:
  - Administer and coordinate meetings, functions and actions of the NPMSCC.
  - Communicate all relevant safety culture topics and requirements to the NPM BA.
  - Ensure that the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) Procedure and Plan are authorised, updated and relevant.
  - Promote and support safety culture improvements and initiatives aimed at creating a healthy safety culture in NPM.
  - Monitor NPM safety culture utilising appropriate indicators.
  - Liaise with the Koeberg Operating Unit NSED and HPOC forums to align SCEP activities and to share Operating Experience feedback on safety culture aspects.
  - Participate in NPM safety culture assessments, audits and surveys.
  - Provide advice and insight on safety culture matters to the NPM BA.
  - It was confirmed that R Lavelot is the current appointed SCEP co-ordinator. An appointment letter dated, 2019-05-01, was provided to the auditor.

In evaluating compliance to the above-mentioned responsibilities, no anomalies were noted besides the following: Although it is noted in 240-119091328 Rev 5 that the NPMSCC should also be represented at the *Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee* (NSEC), and/or similar forums, which monitors interdepartmental activities such as the Human Performance and Safety Culture awareness initiatives associated with all NOU related activities. Based on the lack of evidence in this area, an assurance statement cannot be provided (see AU 39424-004 QA).

3.3.3.2 According the Attributes of a Positive Safety Culture as documented in 240-119091328 Rev 5, Appendix B, management commitment is noted as one of the key attributes required to ensure a positive safety culture. Specifically Appendix B states: 'Management commitment to safety is evident when senior managers use their authority to enable and empower workers to behave in safer way while creating a safe and productive working environment'.

In reviewing the objective evidence collected during the audit, the following was noted regarding the role and responsibilities of the NPM Senior Manager:

- The incumbent has encouraged active participation from staff at all levels of the organisation as part of the SCEP. This was evident in the committee member composition and participation.
- There is evidence that all human resources and management systems, procedures and processes necessary to implement and maintain a sustainable strong NSC programme have been made available. This was evident as follows: the currency of the SCEP outputs which included the SCEP procedure and plan, as well as the appointment of various role players

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	29 of 68

participating in the NPMSCC has been noted which ensures that assignments and related roles are understood and accepted.

• There is evidence of establishing an open reporting culture, where events are treated as an opportunity to improve individual and organisational performance. This was evident in the tracking of the related KPIs which encourages reporting and OE use.

Based on the level of compliance and active participation by all parties involved in the management of the NPM SCEP, an area of good practice has been noted as follows:

AU 39424-020 QA: The Senior Manager: Nuclear Projects Management's commitment to establishing, executing and improving the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement Programme is commendable.

### 3.3.4 Monitoring of the NPM NSC Health (SCEP and BA safety culture plan)

In reviewing 240-119091328 Rev 5, it was noted that nine specific key performance indicators (KPIs) used to measure the NSC health, has been defined and documented in paragraph 3.7. In addition it is required that the trending be performed on a quarterly basis and presented to the NPMSCC, where it is to be evaluated for any preventative or corrective action.

These KPIs are as follows:

- · Safety Culture Committee Quorum;
- Adherence to Safety Culture Plan;
- Percentage of Actions overdue;
- Safety events (when more than one safety CR of the same code is raised per month);
- Number of Nuclear Safety Concerns Reported;
- Number of CRs reported monthly by NPM versus the number of CRs reported monthly for NPM learning;
- Number of Safety Heroes nominated per month;
- Number of Management Initiatives generated per quarter; and
- Comparison of Top Non Compliance trend codes.

Based on the KPI report reviewed, the following KPIs were noted as being measured in practice:

- KPI: NPMSCC Quorum- Individual attending directly impact stats (31 attendees monitored)
- KPI: NPMSCC Adherence to SCP
- KPI: NPMSCC Percentage of Actions Overdue
- KPI: Industrial Safety Unsafe Behaviours (NPM)/ KPI: Industrial Safety Unsafe Behaviours (SGR)
- KPI: Industrial Safety Safety Events (NPM)/ KPI: Industrial Safety Safety Events (SGR)
- KPI: Reporting Rates (NPM) /. KPI: Reporting Rates (SGR)
- KPI: Positive Re-enforcement Safety Heroes (NPM)/ KPI: Positive Re-enforcement Safety Heroes (SGR)
- KPI: Positive Re-enforcement -Management Initiatives
- Trending: Non-adherence Indicator (November 2019) / KPI: Non-adherence Indicator (SGR)
- KPI: Non-Compliance (NPM) / KPI: Non-Compliance (SGR)
- KPI: Observations (NPM) / KPI: Observations (SGR)

It was confirmed on Friday, 2020-02-28, during the observation of the NPMSCC meeting, that the KPI report was presented to the committee. In addition the quarterly KPIs were provided to the auditor for review and no anomalies were noted. In conclusion, there is good alignment between documented prescription and practice. However it is important to note that the consolidated NOU NSC KPI still requires implementation across the NOU as noted in the observation below and discussed in section 3.1 of this report:

**AU 39424-002 QA:** In order to effectively implement the NEXCO endorsed nuclear safety culture health indicators which is needed to measure the status of the established Eskom Nuclear Objective, may require further consolidation and review in order to ensure that business area KPIs are aligned and are able to support this overall NOU health measurement.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424	
		Revision	0
	Controlled Disclosure	Page	30 of 68

### 3.3.5 Feedback and Continual Improvement which support enhancement of the NPM SCEP

According to 240-119091328 Rev 5, paragraph 3.6, improvement of the Safety Management System (SMS) can be achieved by using the results of self-assessments, audits, surveillances and condition reports/investigations as a feedback mechanism in order to improve the processes. In addition the procedure also states that at strategic points in time, independent peer reviews should be utilised to facilitate continual improvement and to review process adequacy. The results of periodic safety culture assessments are also evaluated to monitor the impact of these changes on the safety culture of NPM.

- 3.3.5.1 During the Initial verification interview with the NPM SCEP co-ordinator on Thursday 2020-02-27, it was noted that he was not aware of any particular safety culture self-assessments completed during the 2019-2020 period within NPM which would qualify as a means of improving the SMS of NPM. However during the NPMSCC meeting held on Friday 2020-02-28, it was mentioned by one of the meeting's participants that a safety culture self-assessment evaluating the willingness of suppliers to raise concerns, was completed. The following details of the self-assessment were later provided to the auditor: Date of SE: 2019-02-18, unique SE number: SE 38130 and title, Self-assessment on the Contractor Evaluation criteria. Based on the initial interview and the observation of the NPMSCC meeting, the following was noted:
  - The NPM SCEP co-ordinator was not aware of this self-assessment at the time of the verification audit held on 2020-02-27.
  - The SCEP Co-ordinator has only been appointed since May 2019, after the execution of selfassessment, SE 38130.
  - Neither the safety culture plans for FY 2019 nor FY2020 noted any details of the contractor NSC self-assessment.
  - A review of all versions of the safety culture plans indicated no details regarding the NSC selfassessments planned and executed.

Based on the limited information noted on the safety culture plans, it is recommended that additional detail such as the unique SE and possibly the title be noted on the plan. This would ensure traceability to related self-assessments which are planned and executed for improving the SMS of NPM. To highlight this area for improvement, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-014 QA:** Insufficient detail regarding the SC Health assessments planned and executed were included in the FY2019 and FY2020 NPM SC plans.

In reviewing the administrative controls associated with the Devonway actions for SE 38130, it was noted that four actions were raised and subsequently closed on Devonway. No additional anomalies were noted.

3.3.5.2 RD-0034 Rev 0, Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations, requires in paragraph (122) that a systematic process for monitoring safety culture within level 1 organisation's must be established, using suitable leading and lagging indicators, and qualitative information (for example findings from self-assessments, NNR and independent reviews). As previously observed in section 3.1 of this report, the leading and lagging indicators which are to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment, have not been defined in the NPM SCEP documentation (see AU 39424-005 QA).

### 3.3.6 NPM Records Management

Records generated as part of the NPM Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, which is required to ensure that compliance can be demonstrated in the future, was assessed by verifying compliance to 240-119091328 Rev 5 and 238-6 Rev 4 requirements.

- 3.3.6.1 According to 240-119091328 Rev 5, paragraph 6, the following documented outputs have been identified as non-permanent records to be retained for two years on Sharepoint:
  - The Safety Culture Plan for each year,
  - NPMSCC agendas,
  - NPMSCC attendance records,
  - NPMSCC critique sheets,
  - NPMSCC minutes,
  - KPIs and all Audit/Assessment/Survey results.

Title. Nuclear datety duture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	31 of 68

In addition, 238-6 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement, requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.1 specifies that records shall be managed through indexing on a Records Retention Matrix (240-43723778). It is also required that Records Retention Matrix be maintained on a continual basis and reviewed at prescribed intervals.
- Paragraph 5.4 requires that in instances where BAs store their own records, they shall request a waiver from TD&RM.

In practice minutes of these meetings are stored in the following location https://portal.eskom.co.za/sites/nuclearpip/meet/NPMSCC/MRC%20Minutes/Forms/AllItems.aspx, and were retrievable during the audit. The following record anomalies were noted in this area:

- NPM SCEP records were not indexed on the latest QRL retrieved from TD&RM (dated 2016-06-03).
- · Records were not archived or retrievable from TD&RM
- There was no waiver in place for identified SCEP records retained within department by NPM.
- 3.3.6.2 As previously mentioned, in assessing the oversight exercised by management over the BA SCEPs, minutes of management review meetings were also reviewed to determine if NSC elements were included along with noted agenda items as documented in 238-128 Rev 3, Management Review Standard (Appendix A, Typical Management Review Meeting Inputs).

A sample of management review meetings (MRM) minutes for the period 2017 to 2019 were reviewed in order to determine whether the NSC element had been included as a typical meeting input. No anomalies were noted.

In practice meeting minutes are stored on Sharepoint in the following location, https://portal.eskom.co.za/sites/nuclearpip/meet/MRM, and hardcopies are also retained in section. According to the NPM Management Review procedure, 240-119091486 Rev 4, paragraph 8, MRM minutes are to be retained for a period of not less than 10 years. Although these records were available at NPM, by not indexing these records on an authorised QRL or record retention matrix, the record archiving requirements would not have been reviewed and endorsed by TD&RM. In addition, records assigned a retention period of ten years would typically require appropriate storage conditions only available at TD&RM.

When records are not indexed and subsequently archived as required, the necessary protection and retrievability of these records may be compromised. To highlight the risk associated with these anomalies, the following nonconformity was raised:

CR114010: Records for Nuclear Project Management (NPM), related to the Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and the Management Review Committee (MRM), have not been indexed on the authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix.

### 3.4 Nuclear Commercial (NC)

The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme for Nuclear Commercial (NC) documented in 238-165 Rev 1, *Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure*, was authorised on 2015-10-09, and is noted as the main criteria applied in assessing compliance in this area.

### 3.4.1. Establishment and Maintenance of the NC SCEP (including the NSC Plan)

In this area, both the Safety Culture Enhancement procedure and the available NSC plans were assessed to determine if they were valid and up to date. In addition, the configuration of these plans and related actions were also assessed by reviewing identified storage locations and available Devonway data, respectively.

3.4.1.1 It was noted that 238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance procedure has not been reviewed since its initial authorisation in 2015 and has passed its next review date of October 2019. In addition, a content anomaly was observed in that the role of the Corporate Consultant (Human Performance) documented in 238-165 rev 1 paragraph 2.5.1, no longer exists and as a result, there is no evidence that the required review of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan to ensure consistency and effective

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	32 of 68

implementation has occurred at the KOU level. In addition reference is made to the Human Performance Standard (238-173) which has been withdrawn.

Furthermore, 238-219 Rev 1, Level-1 Supplier Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) Requirements, which prescribes the requirements and supports the implementation of Supplier Safety Culture Enhancement Programmes, has passed its next review date. The procedure was authorised on 2014-06-06 and was required to be reviewed by November 2016.

When controlled documents are not reviewed timeously, there is risk of process noncompliance as practices may have evolved from authorised processes. To highlight this anomaly, the following nonconformity has been raised:

**CR114006:** Certain Nuclear Commercial Procedures, required for implementing Nuclear Safety Culture, has passed their next review dates.

3.4.1.2 In assessing the validity and currency of the NSC plans, it was stated by the NC Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support) that the established safety culture plan is aligned with the Eskom financial year. This was confirmed by reviewing safety culture plans for the period, FY2018 to FY2020. The plans are retrievable from Sharepoint from the following location: https://portal.eskom.co.za/sites/nuccomm/Lists/SCEP/Grouped.aspx.

According to 238-165 Rev 1, two levels of Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance plans are established, namely, a high level and a working level Safety Culture and Human Performance plan. It was stated by the NC Senior Advisor interviewed on Wednesday 2020-03-04, that the working level plan refers to the scheduled actions associated with the High level plan. It was also noted that the NC Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan is maintained on Sharepoint and is updated by the Nuclear Commercial Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support) based on information provided by action owners. Anomalies pertaining to the resolution of the SCP actions were noted are discussed in section 3.4.5 of this report.

3.4.2. Control of the NC Safety Culture Enhancement programme (via Committees)

The control of the NC Safety Enhancement programme via the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee as documented in 238-165 Rev 1, was assessed as follows:

- · Frequency of executed meetings;
- · Quorum of the meetings;
- · Execution of documented mandates.
- 3.4.2.1 According to in 238-165 Rev 1 paragraph 3.2.4.1, it is required that the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings be held on a quarterly basis. The Nuclear Commercial is required to provide oversight and monitor the effective implementation of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.
- 3.4.2.2 The Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure, 238-165 Rev 1 paragraph 3.2.4.2, requires that quorum consists of the chairperson and at least three other principal or alternate members. Paragraph 3.2.1 notes the chairperson as the Senior Manager Nuclear Commercial or any delegated principal member. The principal members are the representatives from each of the Nuclear Commercial departments, comprising staff and supervisory / management level personnel. While the secretariat function, is managed by the appointed Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner for Nuclear Commercial.
- 3.4.2.3 In reviewing the stated mandate of the committee, 238-165 Rev 1 paragraph 3.2.2, assigns the following responsibilities to the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee:
  - Provide direction for improving overall Safety Culture in line with the INPO document, "Traits of a Healthy Nuclear Safety Culture", complying with the requirements of 238-28 and implementing the requirements in this procedure.
  - Oversee the compilation, update and execution of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.
  - Liaise with KOU Safety Culture and Human Performance forums to align Safety Culture/Human Performance activities and share Operating Experience.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	33 of 68

 Review results of Safety Culture surveys and ensure execution of agreed improvement initiatives.

During the audit, meeting minutes for the period 2017 to 2019 for Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee could not be provided and only minutes for the October 2015 meeting was available. As a result there was no evidence that the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee was active and functional as the single oversight body of the Nuclear Commercial Nuclear Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan. The inactive status of this Oversight Committee was confirmed by the Nuclear Commercial Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support).

When the required Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings are not held, there is no assurance that the required oversight during the compilation, update and execution of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan is achieved. To highlight this anomaly the following nonconformity has been raised:

**CR114007:** The quarterly Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings have not been held since 2015.

3.4.3. Roles and Responsibilities related to the control of the NC Safety Culture Enhancement Programme

As part of assessing compliance in this area, two key functions were tested, namely the role of the Senior Manager and the appointed Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner for Nuclear Commercial.

- 3.4.3.1 In assessing compliance in this area, a sample of Senior Manager Responsibilities was tested. According to 238-165 Rev 1 paragraph 2.5.2, the Senior Manager: Nuclear Commercial is responsible for the following:
  - Develop and implement a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.
  - Establish a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee, and take the role of Chairperson of said committee.
  - Appoint a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner.
  - Periodically analyse the extent of human error as a contributory cause in safety incidents.
  - Devolve elements of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance

The following anomalies were noted in this area:

- As previously mentioned, there was no evidence that the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings have convened as required.
- There is no evidence that the Senior Manager: Nuclear Commercial has maintained and chaired the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee as required.
- There is no evidence that the extent of human error as a contributory cause in safety incidents has been periodically analysed.
- There is no evidence that staff at all levels within Nuclear Commercial have participated in the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings for the period 2016-2019.

To highlight these anomalies, CR114008, noted below, has been raised.

- 3.4.3.2 According to 238-165 Rev 1 paragraph 2.5.3, the Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner gives effect to the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance strategy as follows:
  - Assist the Senior Manager: Nuclear Commercial in the development and implement the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.
  - Develop Safety Culture and Human Performance initiatives to drive the implementation of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.
  - Manage the secretariat function of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee.
  - · Attend the KOU Safety Culture Forum.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	34 of 68

Although evidence of the development and implementation of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance plan was noted, there was no evidence of the appointment of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner. It was confirmed by the Nuclear Commercial Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support) interviewed on Wednesday 2020-03-04, that she compiles and updates the NSC plan and manages all outputs on Sharepoint. It was also confirmed that independent and/or peer reviews of the plan do not occur.

All these anomalies relate to the responsibilities assigned to the Senior Manager and his direct reports. When leadership do not fulfil their assigned responsibilities associated with implementing the safety culture enhancement programme, the required environment to promote and foster a healthy safety culture, may be negatively impacted. To highlight these anomalies, the following nonconformity has been raised:

**CR114008:** Certain roles and responsibilities assigned to the Nuclear Commercial Senior Manager, related to the implementation and oversight of the Nuclear Safety Culture Programme, have not been implemented as required.

# 3.4.4. Monitoring of the NC NSC Health (SCEP and BA safety culture plan)

In reviewing 238-165 Rev 1, it was noted that specific key performance indicators (KPIs) used to measure the NSC and Human Performance has been documented in Table 1 titled, *Nuclear Commercial Compliance with Safety Culture Plan and Human Performance Requirements*.

The Safety Culture (SC) KPIs prescribed are as follows:

- Corrective Action Program (CAP) health (number of notifications raised).
- · Audit/assessment findings.

The Human Performance (HP) KPIs prescribed are as follows:

- CAP health (percentage of closed corrective actions and number of self-reported incidents).
- Recurring corrective actions/repeat events.
- Hours of Human Performance training per individual.

With reference to SC health monitoring, it was noted that the CAP health (number of notifications raised) and audit/assessment findings, are elements covered in the annual MRC meeting minutes. An attachment to the NC SCP was also noted which indicated the analysis of the CRs raised and provided evidence of this element being monitored.

As part of HP monitoring, the CAP health indicators are used as a measuring tool, while recurring corrective actions/repeat events are actioned through trending identified by CAR which usually results in a request to perform a trend/ common cause analysis. In addition, recurring events are also tracked as part of audits executed in the area.

In reviewing the KPIs established within the Nuclear Commercial BA and comparing these to other BAs assessed during this audit, it was noted that although unique indicators may have been established, it is equally important that a common set of NSC indicators be implemented in order to ensure that BA KPIs are aligned and are able to support the overall NOU health measurement. This area for improvement has been previously discussed in section 3.1 and noted across all BA monitoring sub-sections of this report (refer to AU 39424-002 QA).

### 3.4.5. Feedback and Continual Improvement which support enhancement of the NC SCEP

It was noted that elements supporting continual improvement of the NC SCEP are listed in 238-165 Rev 1, Table 1 titled, *Nuclear Commercial Compliance with Safety Culture Plan and Human Performance Requirements*. These elements include:

- Operating experience (OE) feedback which is used to continually improve the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance.
- Self-assessments, which provide a structured approach in assessing the effectiveness of programmes, processes or performance against specific criteria are used to identifying areas for improvements.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	35 of 68

- While paragraphs 2.5.3.1 and 3.1.4 of 238-165 Rev 1 states that the implementation of the Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan at departmental level is driven by means of Safety Culture and Human Performance initiatives.
- 3.4.5.1 It was stated by the Nuclear Commercial Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support) that OE is captured on an OE Sharepoint Library. This was confirmed using the Sharepoint link below:

https://portal.eskom.co.za/sites/nuccomm/OE/\_layouts/15/start.aspx#/Lists/OEE/AllItems.aspx.

It was also noted that 238-178 Rev 2, *Process for Capturing Operating Experience within Nuclear Commercial* was authorised 2019-05-28 and is current. No further anomalies were noted in this area.

In order to assess compliance to the area of self-assessments, a sample of self-assessments noted on the Nuclear Commercial SCP was selected to determine if related actions have been captured and tracked on Devonway.

A total of nine periodic safety culture and human performance assessments were identified and planned across the three plans reviewed for the period, 2017-2019. According the information noted on the individual plans, four of these self-assessments have been completed. The closure of these actions on Devonway was however not verified by the auditor. Of the periodic safety culture and human performance assessments reviewed, it was noted that a number of theses assessments were in progress or have been rolled over from year to year. This sample included the self-assessment, SE35232, titled, *The availability of spares*, which has been rolled over from the 2017/2018 plan and still remains open. It was also noted that this action was initiated in Devonway on 2015-09-02 and remains open. Based on the current challenges facing the organisation and the fact that the availability of spares directly impacts the NC core business, it is concerning that this self-assessment has not been completed and actioned, after being initiated almost five years ago.

In addition, a sample of forty-five NC safety SCP actions for the period 2017 to 2020, were reviewed in order to assess implementation and control of these initiatives. It was observed that certain actions important to the NC core business have either not been completed or implemented as planned. Examples include:

- Create awareness of safety culture with suppliers at supplier forums. There is no objective
  evidence that this action was completed for FY2019 and FY2020. Only the action for FY2018
  was indicated as completed.
- In response to action to review SE37932 (completed 2017 and reported 2018) titled, KOU Nuclear Safety Culture - for the NNR, it was reordered that no actions were identified.

Even though the NC Senior Advisor interviewed on Wednesday 2020-03-04 has maintained the NC SC and HP plan, improved control in tracking the SCP actions is required to ensure the continual improvement of the NC SCEP. To highlight these above-mentioned anomalies, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-016 QA:** Resolution of Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan actions, have not been timeously completed.

3.4.5.2 RD-0034 Rev 0, Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations, requires in paragraph (122) that a systematic process for monitoring safety culture within level 1 organisation's be established, using suitable leading and lagging indicators, and qualitative information (for example findings from self-assessments, NNR and independent reviews). As previously observed in section 3.1 of this report, the leading and lagging indicators which are to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment, have not been defined in the NC SCEP documentation (see AU 39424-005 QA).

### 3.4.6. NC Records Management

Records generated as part of the NC Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, which is required to ensure that compliance can be demonstrated in the future, was assessed.

3.4.6.1 In reviewing 238-165 Rev 1 it was observed that records for the NC SCEP have not been identified. As a result no NC SCEP record has been indexed on any NC authorised QRL or record retention matrix.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	36 of 68

According to 238-8 Rev 4, *Nuclear Safety and Quality Manual*, paragraph 3.1.2, process owners are required to identify records that demonstrate that process results have been achieved. These records are to be specified in the process documentation. In addition, KSA-038 Rev 5: *Requirements for Quality Records*, requires in paragraphs 5.2.3 and 5.3.2, that records be identified, indexed and captured on a record retention matrix.

3.4.6.2 In assessing the oversight exercised by management over the BA SCEP, minutes of management review meetings were reviewed to determine if NSC elements were included along with noted agenda items documented in 238-128 Rev 3 Management Review Standard (Appendix A, Typical Management Review Meeting Inputs).

The sample of the management review meetings (MRM) minutes reviewed for the period 2017 to 2019, were as follows: 10 April 2015, 26 April 2016, 26 September 2017 and 01 April 2019. In reviewing these meeting minutes, it was noted that the SCEP procedure, 238-165 (which only expired in October 2019) and the plan were noted as up to date but no specific NSC plan actions or initiatives have been recorded in the sampled of minutes reviewed. Procedure, 238-219 was not discussed during this meeting as it applies to supplier safety culture requirements and not the NC SCEP specifically.

It was observed that 238-166 Rev 2, *Nuclear Commercial Management Review Committee Terms of Reference*, paragraph 9, notes that all records generated by the committee (including minutes of meetings) shall be kept on the Nuclear Commercial workspace on SharePoint. The minutes shall be retained as non-permanent records. In addition, in reviewing the NC Business Integration and Support QRL dated 2016-04-05 it was noted that these records have been indexed and are to be archived in KIS location RS2.6.3 for five years and not retained in section.

The following anomalies were noted:

- The details of the Nuclear Commercial Quality Record Listing (QRL) dated 2016-04-05, does
  not align with the record location requirements noted in 238-166 Rev 2, Nuclear Commercial
  Management Review Committee Terms of Reference, paragraph 9, which states that records
  are to be retained as non-permanent records in the Nuclear Commercial workspace on
  SharePoint.
- It has been confirmed by TD&RM that no waiver request for in-section storage has been received from Nuclear Commercial.
- The authorised QRL (record retention matrix) for the Nuclear Commercial Business Integration and Support group was last reviewed on 2016-04-05.

Based on all the anomalies highlighted in this section, it is important to note that when records are not identified and subsequently not archived as required, the organisation may not be able to demonstrate that the SCEP process outputs have been achieved. To highlight the risk associated with these anomalies, the following nonconformity was raised:

**CR114009**: Records related to the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) and the Management Review process for Nuclear Commercial, have either not been identified or appropriately indexed, as required.

### 3.5 Nuclear Engineering (NE)

The Safety Culture Enhancement Programme for Nuclear Engineering (NE) was previously documented in 331-8 rev 0, however at the time of the audit it was noted that this NE SCEP procedure had been withdrawn on 2019-07-15. According to the withdrawal documentation, 331-8 would be superseded by the NOU level document, 238-28, *Nuclear Safety Management Programme*.

In order to assess compliance in this area, the following criteria were assessed:

- 238-28 Rev 3, Nuclear Safety Management Programme.
- 331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference.
- 331-243 Rev 2, Nuclear Engineering Management Review.

### 3.5.1 Establishment and Maintenance of the NE SCEP (including the NSC Plan)

In this area, both the Safety Culture Enhancement procedure (331-499 Rev 1) and the available NSC plans were assessed to determine if they were valid and up to date. In addition, the configuration of

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	37 of 68

these plans and related actions were also assessed by reviewing identified storage locations and available Devonway data, respectively.

3.5.1.1 It was noted that 331-499 Rev 1, *Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference* (ToR) authorised in May 2019, remains current. In reviewing the content of this ToR, the previously authorised procedure, 331-8 and the current 238-28, it was observed that the impact of withdrawing the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement procedure 331-8 Rev 0, while ensuring compliance to SCEP requirements, may not have been holistically assessed.

The inference that the withdrawal 331-8 Rev 0 may not have been holistically assessed to ensure compliance to SCEP requirements is based on the following anomalies:

- Records are not stipulated in the term of reference documented in 331-499 Rev 1. Previously 331-8 Rev 0 required that the safety culture enhancement plan for each year and all safety culture assessment results be kept as permanent records. Since the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement procedure is no longer applicable, these items are no longer being managed as records.
- It was also noted that the prescription of the NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-28 Rev 3, has not documented in sufficient detail, the requirements assigned at the level of functional area to ensure consistent implementation and compliance to Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) requirements, when compared to revision 2 and revision 1 of the same document. The details of these limitations have been discussed in section 3.1 of this report.

It was stated by the Engineering Process Support Manager and Senior Advisor that 331-8 Rev 0 was withdrawn due to a NEXCO decision, however it remains the responsibility of the manager assigned the particular functional responsibility to assess the impact of withdrawing procedures assigned to their area.

In light of the anomalies noted in the current revision of 238-28, the *NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme*, withdrawing 331-8 Rev 0, *The Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement* and replacing it with 331-499 Rev 1, *Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference* may have potentially diminished the process controls required for implementing the NE SCEP in the future. To highlight this anomaly, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-017 QA**: The impact of withdrawing the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement procedure 331-8 Rev 0, while ensuring compliance to SCEP requirements, may not have been holistically assessed.

3.5.1.2 In assessing the validity and currency of the NSC plans, it was stated by the NE Senior Advisor (Engineering Process Support) that the established safety culture plan is aligned with Eskom's financial year. This was confirmed by reviewing safety culture plans for the period, FY2018 to FY2020. The plans were retrievable from Sharepoint.

One version of a plan was provided for each financial year for the period 2018 to 2020. Although a status column had been added to each of these plans and comments have been captured, there was no further indication that updates to these plans have been controlled. This was based on the absence of revisions or versions being captured on the plans provided. As a result, it is difficult to demonstrate that the plan has been updated periodically since multiple revisions for each plan were not available. It was confirmed by the NE Senior Advisor (Engineering Process Support) that neither revision nor version control methods were applied as a matter of practice. In addition, when reviewing the plans provided, there was also no indication when plans were initiated and subsequently updated as plans and amendments to status updates have not been dated.

In the reviewing the plans provided, it was noted that these plans indicated the name of the compiler and noted that these plans were reviewed by the NSC HP Committee. However, none of these plans have been signed by these respective parties, thereby failing to provide auditable evidence that these actions were completed by the assigned role players. It was confirmed by the NE Senior Advisor (Engineering Process Support) that signatures were typically not recorded.

Based on the lack of revision control and validation by respective parties being recorded when making amendments to these plans, it is uncertain whether overall process compliance has been achieved and

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	38 of 68

whether the necessary configuration of the plan has been maintained. To highlight these anomalies, the following observation has been raised:

**AU 39424-018 QA:** It is uncertain how often the NE Safety culture plans for the period 2017 to 2019 have been updated since no revision/version control has been applied for NE SC and HP plan

3.5.2 Control of the NE Safety Culture Enhancement programme (via Committees)

The control of the NE Safety Enhancement programme via the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee as documented in 331-499 Rev 1, was assessed as follows:

- · Frequency of executed meetings;
- · Quorum of the meetings;
- · Execution of documented mandates.
- 3.5.2.1 Relating to the frequency of executed meetings, according to in 331-499 Rev 1 paragraph 7.1.1, it is required that the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings be held on a quarterly basis and that it functions as the single oversight committee for NE SC and HP plan.

It was observed that the 2019-2020 NE SC and HP plan only recorded the completion of two of the four scheduled committee meetings for the period, April 2019 to March 2020. These meetings were held on 2019-05-02 and 2020-02-18.

When the prescribed amount of Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings are not held, the desired enhancement of Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Programme among other mandated responsibilities, may not be achieved. To highlight this anomaly, the following nonconformity has been raised:

CR114012: Not all the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee quarterly meetings have been held for the period, April 2019 to March 2020, as required.

3.5.2.2 According to 331-499 Rev 1 paragraph 7.2.1, notes the quorum of these meetings, as follows: the chairperson, four principal members and four ordinary members. It is also stated in paragraph 7.2.3 that the chairperson shall be rotated amongst the Heads of Departments.

Based on the general attendance register provided for these two meetings, it was confirmed that the quorum had been met.

- 3,5.2.3 Paragraph 5.1 of 331-499 Rev 1 notes the role and function of the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee. The following sample of these functions were assessed during the audit:
  - Contributing to the compilation of the Nuclear Safety Culture Plan (SCP) and Procedure for Nuclear Engineering.
  - Identifying opportunities to improve Nuclear Safety Culture and Human Performance within Nuclear Engineering.
  - Providing guidance in the compilation of the NE Safety Culture Plan (SCP).
  - Providing guidance to NE in implementing the SCEP to comply with 238-28.
  - Identifying and providing assistance needed to meet committed plans
  - Identifying threats and risks to the plan and to the achievement of planned results.

In order to assess whether the sample of selected responsibilities have been met, the auditor attempted to retrieve and review the meeting action lists which are to be compiled by the secretariat and reviewed and endorsed by the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson. The retrieval of these action lists were not possible as the current the practice only results in the update of the status column of the NSC plan and not in a separate action list being produced. Based on the lack of a detailed action list, it is uncertain whether all the stated functions of the committee have been met.

3.5.3 Roles and Responsibilities related to the control of the NE Safety Culture Enhancement Programme

The two key functions tested in this area were as follows: the role of the Senior Manager and the appointed Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	39 of 68

As previously mentioned in section 3.5.1.1 of this report, the withdrawal of 331-8 Rev 0, *The Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement* may have diminished the process controls required for implementing the NE SCEP. Examples of this diminished control may include the documented responsibilities assigned to NE General Manager, previously documented in 331-8 Rev 0, paragraph 5.2, but not included in 331-499 Rev 1.

- 3.5.3.1 Besides the responsibilities documented in 238-28 Rev 3 for the CNO's direct reports, there is no documented responsibilities assigned to NE General Manager in 331-499 Rev 1. As a result, a sample of responsibilities of the NE Safety Culture and HP Committee Chairperson, was tested which included the following:
  - Chair the NE Safety Culture and HP Committee.
  - Validate NE Safety Culture and HP Committee actions are true representation of what was discussed or assigned in the meeting.

Based on the general attendance register provided for the two meetings held since May 2019, it was not possible to determine who had chaired these meetings. In addition, the current practice which does not result in a separate action list being produced has resulted in there being no evidence that the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson has reviewed and endorsed the action lists as required by 331-499 Rev 1, paragraph 5.3.1.

3.5.3.2 No anomalies were noted in the execution of the duties of the Nuclear Safety Culture and Human Performance Coordinator, except for to the anomaly discussed in section 3.5.3.1, of the report, where it was noted that the secretariat, who is required to compile and distribute actions that stemmed from the meeting after they have been reviewed and endorsed by the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson, did not execute this process step as required.

When action lists are not endorsed and validated by the NE Safety Culture and HP chairperson, it cannot be assured that the actions stemming from these meetings are a true representation of what was discussed. To highlight this anomaly, the follow nonconformity has been raised;

CR114013: There is no evidence that the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson has endorsed the action lists stemming from the Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings for the period April 2019 to March 2020

### 3.5.4 Monitoring of the NSC Health (SCEP and BA safety culture plan)

In this area it is evident that the withdrawal of 331-8 Rev 0 may have negatively impacted the monitoring of the NSC health as part of the continual implementation of the SCEP. Besides 238-28 Rev 3, the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting ToR (331-499) is the only controlled document that deals with the NE SCEP implementation. This controlled document does not prescribe or define the specific key performance indicators which are monitored on an ongoing process within NE and tabled during the Management Review Committee meetings.

It was also previously highlighted that the limited prescription in 238-28 regarding KPIs, coupled with the delay in implementing the NEXCO endorsed KPIs, has seen the undue delay in a collective NOU NSC health measure. This area for improvement has been previously discussed in section 3.1 and noted across all BA monitoring sub-sections of this report (refer to AU 39424-002 QA).

### 3.5.5 Feedback and Continual Improvement which support enhancement of the NE SCEP

Similarly to the previous section, the area of feedback and continual improvement has not been documented in the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting ToR (331-499), which increases the risk of not implementing the required processes that support NSC continual improvement. Although there is evidence that these processes, such as the self-assessment and operating experience process are being applied, there is risk that these processes may not focus of NSC.

One element of continual improvement documented in 331-499 Rev 1 paragraph 8.1, has been noted. This element refers to the annual self-evaluation that is to be executed in order to evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee at least once a year.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	40 of 68

Since the NSC plans are implemented across a financial year (March to April), the 2019-2020 NSC plan was reviewed to determine if the self-evaluation had been entered on the plan for identification and tracking purposes. There was no evidence of such an entry on the plan. Furthermore, at the time of concluding the audit, approximately eleven days of the current financial year still remained. Based on this time constraint, the following observation has been raised to highlight the potential risk of not completing the required self-evaluation before the end of the financial year:

**AU 39424-019 QA:** There is potential risk that the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee may not meet the due date of end of March for completing the self-evaluation whereby its performance and effectiveness for the period April 2019 to March 2020 will be assessed.

### 3.5.6 NE Records Management

Records generated as part of the NE Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, which is required to ensure that compliance can be demonstrated in the future, was assessed.

- 3.5.6.1 In reviewing 331-499 Rev 1, the following anomalies were observed:
  - 331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting ToR (authorised 2019-05-02) does not specify any records to be retained. Paragraph 7.5.2 states: 'No minutes will be taken, but an action list will be maintained as when and required'.
  - Action lists are not identified on the current Nuclear Engineering/ Engineering Support Record retention matrix (2020-03-02).
  - The current Nuclear Engineering/ Engineering Support Record retention matrix (2020-03-02) does not specify any records as part of the NE SCEP process.

238-8 Rev 4, *Nuclear Safety and Quality Manual*, paragraph 3.1.2 requires that process owners identify records that demonstrate that process results have been achieved. These records are to be specified in the process documentation.

It was determined after reviewing the previous revision of the NE record retention matrix (2019-11-19) that SCEP records had not been indexed. It was also noted that at the time when 331-8 rev 0 was applicable (withdrawn on 2019-07-15), that the safety culture enhancement plan and all safety culture assessment results were required to be kept as permanent records. In reviewing the QRL applicable at that time (dated 2016-06-30), only an entry for the safety culture steering committee was included. Therefore these permanent SCEP records which were identified at the time of 331-8 rev 0 applicability, were not archived.

3.5.6.2 In assessing the oversight exercised by management over the BA SCEPs, minutes of management review meetings (MRM) were reviewed to determine if NSC elements were included along with noted agenda items documented in 238-128 Rev 3 Management Review Standard (Appendix A, Typical Management Review Meeting Inputs).

A sample of MRM minutes for the period 2017 to 2019 were reviewed in order to determine whether the NSC element had been included as a typical meeting input. The minutes of the following meetings were reviewed: 21 November 2017, 30 August 2018 and 29 August 2019. In reviewing these meeting minutes, it was noted that feedback items included: the monitoring of the NSC plan; status of the SCEP procedure and the status the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings.

In addition, the following anomalies were noted:

- The current Nuclear Engineering/ Engineering Support Record retention matrix (2020-03-02) does not specify the retention period for Management review meeting minutes while the previous record retention matrix (2019-11-19) noted these records to be retained for six months in-section and a total of 40 years at TD&RM.
- There is no evidence that Management review meeting minutes have been archived KIS location MC 1.4.2 and similarly the Management Committee meeting minutes have not been archived in KIS location MC 1.4.12.

When records are not identified and subsequently not archived as required, it may be difficult for the organisation to demonstrate that process outputs have been achieved. To highlight these anomalies, the following nonconformity has been raised:

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	41 of 68

**CR114011:** Records required to demonstrate that the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) has been implemented or reviewed, has either not been identified, appropriately indexed or archived as required.

### 3.6 Effectiveness Review of Previously Raised QA Nonconformities

During the effectiveness review, CR 95398 was reviewed despite the Devonway status of *Waiting Action Completion*. It was noted that all corrective actions had been closed, with the exception of the effectiveness review action.

In reviewing the original nonconformity identified in 2016, an evaluation was completed to determine if the objective evidence related to CR 95398, and listed below, were resolved:

- Annual self-assessments of NSC has not been implemented consistently across the KOU (Nuclear Commercial; Nuclear Project Management, Nuclear Engineering and Nuclear Support). Based on the evidence gathered during this audit, this condition remains unresolved. Refer to AU 39424-003 QA.
- KPIs related to NSC have not been defined or implemented consistently across the KOU to gauge the strength of NSC (Nuclear Engineering, Nuclear Commercial).. Although each BA has defined KPIs, the collective measurement has not been rolled out across the NOU. Refer to AU 39424-002 QA.
- An annual Safety Culture Council meeting at KOU level which includes all Functional Areas (FAs) has not taken place for 2015 / 2016. Based on the lack of evidence noted in this area during this audit, an assurance statement can not be provided. Refer to AU 39424-004

Based on the evidence noted above, the corrective actions have not addressed the nonconformity previously raised. Therefore the nonconformity is deemed to be ineffectively addressed.

In addition the majority of the observations previously identified during QA activities remain open resulting in these observations remaining unresolved and requiring attention.

All items reviewed as part of the effectiveness review have been tabulated in Appendix 4.5.18.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	42 of 68

### Audit Administration

### Personnel interviewed during the audit process

Name	Department/ Function	Interviewed	Meeting a	ttended
	·		Opening	Closing
R Bakardien	CNO	Yes	No	Yes
T Jappie	NPM Senior Manager	No	Yes	Yes
A Stephanus	ISED Manager	Yes	Yes	No
C Bester	ISED	Yes	Yes	Yes
K Bethel	ISED	Yes	Yes	No
M Tshivhilinge	ISED	Yes	Yes	No
R Lavelot	NPM	Yes	No	No
J Ludick	NPM	Yes	No	No
B Culligan	NC Senior Manager	Yes	No	No
H Hall	Nuclear Commercial	Yes	No	No
N Gumede	Nuclear Engineering	Yes	No	No
L Lukwe	Nuclear Engineering	Yes	No	No
A Mangwana	ISED	Yes	Yes	No
K Kets	ISED	Yes	Yes	No
V Moduka	Nuclear Strategy and Regulation	No	No	Yes
C Robinson	NSA	No	No	Yes

### 4.2 Administrative Information

Audit Team Leader:	R Simons
Audit Team Member(s):	Z Sekoko
Subject Matter Expert(s) (SME)	Not applicable
Observer(s)	Not applicable
Location	Koeberg Power Station
Organisation/Unit	NOU
Audit Dates	2020-03-02 to 2020-03-20

### 4.3 Disclaimer

Please note that where no Nonconformities, Observations or Recommendations were raised it does not imply that none exist, since the audit was based on the objective evidence presented.

### Acknowledgement

The audit team would like to express their gratitude to the auditee representatives and management for their co-operation during the course of the audit.

### 4.5 Attachments

- Nonconformity and Monitoring Activity Rating according to KAQ-021 Rev 4 4.5.1
- 4.5.2 Non conformity CR113998
- Non conformity CR113999 4.5.3
- Non conformity CR114001 4.5.4
- 4.5.5 Non conformity CR114002
- Non conformity CR114003 4.5.6
- Non conformity CR114004 4.5.7
- Non conformity CR114005 4.5.8
- Non conformity CR114006 4.5.9
- 4.5.10 Non conformity CR114007
- 4.5.11 Non conformity CR114008 4.5.12 Non conformity CR114009
- 4.5.13 Non conformity CR114010
- 4.5.14 Non conformity CR114011
- 4.5.15 Non conformity CR114012 4.5.16 Non conformity CR114013
- 4.5.17 Detailed Observations
- 4.5.18 Detailed Effectiveness Review

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
,	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	43 of 68

### 4.5.1 Nonconformity and Monitoring Activity Rating according to KAQ-021 Rev 4

Overall raling	Overall Severity Rating Description
ı	Nonconformity has a significant impact on process objectives being met
3	Nonconformity has a material impact on process objectives being met
2	Nonconformity has a immalerial impact on process objectives being met
1	Nonconformity has a negligible impact on process objectives being met

	Description of Category
Not Met	Collectively the audit findings identified, relative to the scope to the audit, have a significant impact on the ability of the process to achieve its intended objective and have or may impact related business objectives.
Partly Met	Collectively the audit findings identified, relative to the scope to the audit, have a material impact on the ability of the process to consistently achieve its intended objective and may potentially impact related business objectives.
Mostly Met	Collectively the audit findings identified, relative to the scope to the audit, have an immaterial impact on the ability of the process to achieve its intended objective and may not impact related business objectives.
Met	Collectively the audit findings identified have a negligible impact on both the ability of the process to achieve its intended objective and related business objectives.

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	44 of 68

### 4.5.2 Non conformity CR113998

<b>⊗</b> Eskom	Quality Ass		Template Identifier Document Identifier	240-43921804 240-126198945	Rev Rev	6
	Noncome	or title y	Effective Date	June 2019	and the same	
			Review Date	July 2022		
Monitoring Activity Title		Da	ite	Location	)	
Nuclear Safety Culture		2020-	03-20	Koeberg Power	Statio	n
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity GR number	Crit	oria	Organisati	DU	
A104	CR 11 3998	238-6	Rev 4	KNPS		
Nonconformity Descript	ion:					
Certain Koeberg Nuclear Enhancement and Humai	Power Station Procedure Performance Programm	s, required for li tes, have passe	nplementing the distribution their next review	Nuclear Safely Cultur v dates	re	
Criteria Description:						
	oument and Records Mad sitied as level 2 and 3 sh I 4 and 5 shall have a rev	ali have a revie	w period of three	years	n struct	ure
Objective Evidence:						
KAA-850 Rev 0, Koeb     2013/12/24, has pass	erg Nuclear Power Stational its next review date of	on Safety Cultura 2016/12/24. (le:	e Enhancement F vel 3)	rogramma, authorise	:d	
<ol> <li>KGA-097 Rev 5, Station 2019/06/02, (level 4)</li> </ol>	on Event-Free Clock Pro	gram, authorise	3 2013/12/24, has	passed its next revi	ew date	of
3. KGA-053 Rev 4, Self-, next review date of 20		Nuclear Power I	Stalion, authorised	ł 2012/01/26, has pą	ssed its	ŝ
	129 Rev 0 is noted as a	evel 2 documer	it in the second			
<ol> <li>It has been noted that been registered in Der 2013/09/18, has passe</li> </ol>	the following procedure i vonway: KGA-076, Rev 3 ed its next review date of	a, Performing T	rending & Trendir	ng Analysis, authorise	action, ed	has
Justification: (Justilicati	on for rating of NC)				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
When controlled document have evolved from authorities		ously, there is a	risk of process no	oncompliance, as pra	otices i	may
Recurring Y Nonconformity	N / Overall Seve	rity 4	9	2 1,3	1	
Originator: R Si	mons	Team Leade	r. R Simons			
Discussed with: A St	ephanus	Response re	iquited by:	2020-04-14		
Monconformity Acknowledges						
1 The Auditee acknowledges 2 The Audites to please form	the vascilly of the objective evi on QA within 25 days of leave o	dence documented If this nonconformity	. Milly a busbosed caus apone	ective action plan using ar	699688	nort
region as per KGA-094 3 In addition, action taken to p	prevent recurrence of the napo	adormly must be id	entitied during the as:	ecsanool.		
Auditor Signature:	Ephanus. 11	ile: ISEA mi	WAGER	<sub>Date:</sub> 2020 - 0.	3-23	
Reportable Nonconformity Co						
The nonconformity is reportable	A STATE OF THE STA					
Licensing Signature:	<u> </u>	le: Senior Liczosio	g Engineer	Date: 2020-03-04		

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	45 of 68

### 4.5.3 Nonconformity CR 113999

⊕ Eskor	n aự	ality Assurance Ionconformity	Template Identifier Document Identifier	240-43921804	Rev Rev	<del>6</del> 2	
_	ļ ,	ioncomornity	Effective Date Review Date	June 2019 July 2022			
Monitoring Activity Title Nuclear Safety Culture		D	ate	Location Kocherg Power Station			
		2020	03-20				
Monitorina	onitoring Nonconformity		terla	Organisation			

### **Nonconformity Description:**

Records related to the Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programms and the Management Review process for Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, have not been indexed on an authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix and subsequently have not been archived

238-6 Rev 4

KNPS

### Criteria Description:

activity number

A104

335-2 Rev 5, Koeberg Power Station Management Manual paragraph 9.3 requires that records of management reviews be kept.

239-6 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.1 specifies that records shall be managed through indexing on a Records Retention Matrix
  (240-43723778) Furthermore, maintaining the Records Retention Matrix on a continual basis and reviewing
  at prescribed intervals is required.
- Paragraph 5.4 requires that in instances where business areas store their own records, they shall request a walver from TD&RM.

### Objective Evidence:

- The following permanent records, Identified in KAA-850 Rev 0 paragraph 7.1 to 7.3, have not been indexed on the authorised QRL dated 2015/12/14, for the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Group (NSEG) and therefore records were not archived since the authorisation of KAA-850 Rev 0:
  - 1.1 The Safety Culture Survey results, identified as permanent records have not been archived as required.
  - 1.2 The Annual Safety Culture report identified as a permanent record have not been archived as required.
  - 1.3 Safety Culture plans
- The above reports and plans were retrievable from various ISED individuals but were not managed as 'in-section' records. It has been confirmed by 'TD&RM that no walver request for 'in-department/section' storage has been received from NSEG.
- The latest authorised QRL for NSEG was last reviewed in 2015/12/14.

CR number

- There is no ovidence that the KNPS Management Review meeting minutes have been indexed on an authorised Quality Record Listing (QRL) and as a result no KIS location has been noted for this record.
- 5. There is no evidence that the KNPS Management Review meeting minutus have been transmitted to TD8RM.
- It has been confirmed by TD&RM that no waiver request for in-section storage has been received from the Independent Safety Evaluation Department (ISED).

Justification: (Ju	stifi	catio	ı for	rating	g of NC)										
When records are these records may	not y be	index comp	ed an romis	d sut	sequenti	y archis	ved as	regu	red, t	lhe neces	sary pro	otection	n and re	trieval	oility of
Recurring Nonconformity	Υ		N	Χ	Overall Rating	Severi	ty	4		3	3,2	2		1,	
Originator:	1	R Sim	ons			7	Геат L	eade	er:	R Sime	วกร				
Discussed with	- /	Step	hanu	5		F	Respon	se re	quire	d by:	202	20-04-	14	****************	
Nonconformity A  The Auditee a  The Auditee it action plan us In addition, ac  Auditee Signatur	ekne o ple ing a tion	wiedg ase fu n ass	ges the control of th	e val QA v ent re event	within 25 o eport as p	days of per KG/	issue ( \-094.	of Ini onfo	s non rmity	conformi	ly with a dentified	propo	g the as	sessn	
Reportable Nonc	onfo	rmity	Con	firma	tion										
The nonconformity	is re	eporta	ble in	Join	is of the a	igreed l	license	grac	iing s	ystem: Yo	es 🛭 N	o 🖾			
Licensing Signat	ure:	-(-			:	Title:	Senior	Licera	ing En	igineer		Dato:	2020-04	-03	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	46 of 68

### 4.5.4 Nonconformity CR 114001

	Template 240-43921804 Rev									6
♠ Eskom	Quality Ass Nonconfo			Docun Identif		24	0-126198	945	Rev	2
			managade (* e.) e. (* ) e e e	Review Date		1	ne 2019 ly 2022			
Monitoring Activity Title			Date	9			Loc	ation	1	
Nuclear Safety Culture			2020-0	3-20		K	ocherg P	ower	Statio	rì
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number		Crite	ria			Organ	isati	on	
A104	CR114001	KAA-850-Rev 0					KI	IPS		
Nonconformity Descript	lon:									
There is no evidence that	the Safety Culture Steen	ing Comm	iltee (S	CSC) m	eetings l	nave	been hekt	as re	eguired	
Criteria Description:										
KAA-850 Rev B, Koeherg as it relates to the Safety			ure Ent	anceme	int Progr	amm	e, require	sthe	fallowi	ng
	5, 1:2 requires that the S he Safety Culture Plan ac						IC) meets	mont	inly to	
Objective Evidence:										
Only two unsigned act Safety Culture Steerin	ulture Steering Committe ion lists titled, Nucleer Si g Committee ectivities nd 10 September 2018.	afety Culti	re Plan	*meetin	g, were a	availe	ible as evi	denc	e of the followin	; g
Justification: (Justificati	on for rating of NC)			10.000	***************************************					
When the defined Safety of safety culture plan actic			gs are	not held,	the requ	uired	monitoring	g and	oversi	ght
Recurring Nonconformity. Y	N X Overall Se	verity	d		3 3	3,2	2		1	
Originator: R Si	mons	Team	Leader	R	Simons					
Discussed with ASI	ephanus	Respo	nse req	ulred by	,	202	0-04-14			
Nonconformity Acknowl	edgement		**************************************							
2 The Audited to please	edges the validity of the c furnish QA within 25 day ssessment report as per	ys of issue	of this				ptopased	corre	dive	
3 In addition, action take	en to prevent recurrence	of the non	donfor	ndy mus	l be iden	tilled	during the	3 358	essme	nt
Auditee Signature: 4	Medelrams.	Title	a: <i>K</i> (	ED MA	MAGE	e	Ď	ato: 4	2020-03	7-23
Reportable Nonconform										
The neaconformity is repo	rtable in terms of the agr	eed licens	e gradir	ng syste	m: Yes D	א כ	: 120 :			7
Licensing Signature:		itle: Semor	Licensing	resoligna t			Date: 2020	)-04-0:	3	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	47 of 68

### 4.5.5 Nonconformity CR 114002

Ø € 1				administrativa de describiración de la constitución de la constitución de la constitución de la constitución d	Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
®€skom		iality Assu Vonconfor			Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
		NORGOTHOL:	imity		Effective Date	June 2019		
				*********	Review Date	July 2022		
Monitoring Activity Title	9			Date	o e	Locatio	n	
Nuclear Safety Culture			Colored debenous	2020-0	3-20	Koeberg Power	r Statio	n
Monitoring activity number	Nonconform CR number		Criteria			Organisat	lon	
A104	CR 114	002	KC	6A-097	Rev 5	KNPS		
Nonconformity Descript	ion:							***************************************
The minimum number of a not held during the period			nt Com	nillee (	NSEC) meetings	(also known as HP	OC) wa	15
Criteria Description:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	- Commo	CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR				
KGA-097 Rev 5, Station E Committee meeting will be	vent-Free Cle held monthly	ock Program, y with a minin	paragra num of t	ph 5.2. 0 maat	4 states: 'The Nu Ings per year,'	cloar Safety Enhan	cemen.	i.
Objective Evidence:	The same of the sa			Maria de La companya				
2017 to 2020:	gs held ings held	1 January						
Justification: (Justificati	ion for rating	of NC)				3000		
When the minimum <i>Nucle</i> Identify improvement strat	ar Safety Enh	ancement Co					es to	
Recurring Nonconformity Y	NX	Overall Seve Rating	erity	4	3	2	1	1,2
Orlginator: R S	mons		Team	Leader:	R-Simons			
Discussed with: A St	ephanus		Respo	nse req	uired by.	2020-04-14		
Nonconformity Acknowl	edgement		dagoyan					
The Auditee acknowle The Auditee to please action plan using an a In addition, action take	furnish QA w ssessment re	ithin 25 days port as per K	of issue GA-094.	of this	nonconfamilty wi	th a proposed corre		nl.
710000000000000000000000000000000000000	Aplia		Title	o: /SE	D MANAGER	- Date:	ZoZv-05	:23
Reportable Nonconform				- Ammerican				
The nonconformity is repo	rtable in Jerm:	s of the agree	d licens	e gradi:	ng system: Yes ⊏	I No III		
Licensing Signature:	1120	·TIU	o: Senior	Lidensing	Engineer	Date: 2020-04-0	3	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	48 of 68

<b>⊕</b> Eskom	Quality Assi Nonconfo			Templi Identif Docum Identif Effect Review	ler nent ler lve Dat	2/ e Jt	10-4392 10-126 ine 20 ily 202	198945	Rev	-
Monitoring Activity Title		Date						Location	1	
Nuclear Safety Culture		202	0-03	-20		K	Coober	g Power	Static	n.
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	C	ritori	ia			Or	ganisat	òn	
A104	CR 114003	KAA-	850 I	Rev 0				KNPS		
Nonconformity Descript	lon:		uscome or have an							
required by KAA-850 Rev Criteria Description: XAA-860 Rev 0, Kosborg 3 1.6 and 5.9 1 that the O	tre Plan for 2019-2020 is to D. Koeberg Nuclear Power Nuclear Power Station Salan must be regularly review DNSEGINUCLEAR SAFE	ar Stallon Sa ately Culture awed and up	Enha	Culture anceme I. kept i	Enhan ent Prog	gemei gremn and a	nt Prog ne, stat vailabk	es in par	agrapi ollowin	ns
Objective Evidence:	Culture Plan for 2019-2020									
1.2. 2016 folder: w 1.3. 2017 folder od The plans reviewed foldifferent individuals. Both the KNPS a were provided by The KNPS Nucle Manager.	ontained two items: one au or the period 2017 to 2019 and NOU SCP 2018-2019, the individual who previou er Salety Culture Plan 201	idio recordin were not sk as well as th sely acted in 8-2019 rev t	red c the p the p	on the C 19/2020 losition as provi	Starive, KOU : of the fi ided by	botw Safety NOU 9 a NSI	ero reti r plan d Salety ( EG Indi	ated 8 /\ Culture \ vidual er	oni 20 Nanegi	19 er
	9-2020 Nuclear Safety Ac	tion Plan wa	ទ ២០	wided b	y the IS	SEDA	lanage	f.	4	
Justification: (Justificat				<u> </u>						
When the latest Safety Co control may be compromi	<i>ulture Plan</i> is not stored in sed	the required	loca	ion, ea	ise of a	ccess	ibility a	s well as	revisi	an
Recurring Nonconformity	N X Overall Sev		4		3		2		1	1,3
Originator. R.S.	imons	Teem Lea			Simon				<b>.</b>	
Discussed with: A S	tephanus	Response	requ	illied by	·.	202	20-94-1	4		-
<ol> <li>The Auditee to please action plan using an a</li> </ol>	ledgement edges the validity of the ob- e lumish QA within 25 days assessment report as por I en to prevent recurrence o	s of issue of KGA-094	inis r	jancon	formuty	with a				∍nt.
Auditee Signature:	applane	Title:	ISB	o m	ANAC	9 <i>6</i> C	,	Date:	2020-0	3-2
Reportable Nonconform		Odford		<del></del>			<del>**************</del>		<u> </u>	
								100000000000000000000000000000000000000	-	
The nonconformity is repo	vitable in terms of the agre	ed Ixense g	radin	g syste	m; Yes	\ □ \ \	o 120			

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	49 of 68

4.5.7 Nonconformity CR 114004

		Template Idontifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
€skom	Quality Assurance Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
		Effective Date	June 2019	***************************************	
		Review Date	July 2022		

<b>Monitoring Activity</b>	Title	Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Cult	ure	2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation
A104	CR 11 40014	238-6 rev 4 and KSA-011 Rev 14	KNPS

### Nonconformity Description:

The Nucleur Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Terms of Reference and the HPOC Departmental Feedback form have not been managed as controlled documents.

### Criteria Description:

238-8 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement, requires the following

- Paragraph 3, NOU documentation and records management requirements states: 'All approved documents
- reliagraph 5. NOO decorrentation and records management requirements states: "All approved documents shall be stored on an approved EDMS for control and retrievability."

  Table 4. "The document type codes used in the atternative identifier format," (Ists both Forms (F) and Terms of references (Z) among other controlled documents.

KSA-011 Ray 14, The Requirements for Controlled Documents, requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.1.3 states: 'Departments, groups, or sections are allowed to compile, review, authorise and change controlled documents of which they are the owners on condition that:

  > the process is implemented according to an authorised procedure.

  > the electronic master is available and maintained on the EDMs.

  > the paper master is alored and preserved with the document controlling body
- Paragraph 5.1,1 states: 'All controlled documents shall be processed in accordance with document life cycle.'

### Objective Evidence:

- There was no evidence that Nuclear Safety Enhancement Committee (NSEC) Terms of Reference has been processed as a controlled document as follows

  - There is no unique reference assigned.
    There is no evidence of the compiler, reviewer, and authoriser status.
    The electronic master is not available and maintained on the EDMS.
  - The paper master is not stored and preserved with the document controlling body
- The following word revisions for the *Nuclear Safety Enhancoment Committee (NSEC)* Terms of Reference were provided to the auditor during the preparation and execution phases of the audit.

  Rev 3 dated 2017/07/20

  Rev 4 dated 2017/09/20.

addition, a word version of the Nuclear Safety Enhancement Steering Committee Terms of Reference (Rev 2) was also provided.

- There was no evidence that the HPOC Departmental Feedbook forms has been processed as a controlled

  - The electronic master is not available and maintained on the EDMS.
  - The paper master is not stored and preserved with the document controlling hody,
- Two different versions of the HPOC Departmental Feedback forms have been applied by various line groups for the pariod January 2019 to January 2020 as follows: Revision 3 Applied by Operating and the Outage Management groups

Revision 2 -Applied by Chemistry, Nuclear Services, Maintenance Execution, Radiation Protection, Training and System Engineering (Group names as noted on the completed feedback forms)

A notable difference between revision 3 and revision 2 of this form is the addition of the field, *Human: Tachnical Ratio*.

®∈skc	@ Eskom				Quality Assurance Nonconformity				24 Ju	0⊶4392 0⊶1261 ine 201 ily 202:	98945 9	Rev	2
Justification: (J	ıstificatio	n for	ratin	g of NC)						***************************************			
When terms of re applying out-date									nts,	ine gro	oups are	at risk	af
Recurring Nancanformity	У	N	N X Overall Severity 4 3				2	2,2	1				
Originator	RSin	loua			Team	l.eader	RS	mons					
Discussed with:	A Ste	ohant	15		Raspo	ase rec	ulred by:		202	0-04-1	4		
Nonconformity Ackr	owledgeme	ni											
1 The Auditer acknowledges the validity of the objective evidence documented above. 2 The Auditer to please fundsh QA within 25 days of issue of this remountainty with a proposed corrective action than using an accessment report as per KIA-094. 3 in eddition, action taken to preyent regardence of the honcentormity must be identified during the resessment.													
Auditeo Signatura: Whee Laurs . Title: ISED MANAGER Date: 2020-03-28													
Reportable Nonconf							~~~						
The renconformity is Licensing Signature		leman	و المزال إن				I Na 80 Engineer			Dale; 2	020-04-0	3	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	50 of 68

### 4.5.8 Nonconformity CR 114005

		Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
<b>⊕</b> Eskom	Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
		Effective Date	June 2019		
		Review Date	July 2022		

Monitoring Activity	Title	Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Culti	ire	Koeberg Power Station	
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation
A104	CR 114005	KAA-850 Rev 0	KNPS

### Nonconformity Description:

The Power Station Manager has not led the Safety Culture Forum, which consists of his direct reports, in order to assess the health of safety culture.

### Criteria Description:

KAA-850 Rev 9, Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, requires the following

- Paragraph 6.1.2 defines the following Power Station Manager responsibility: Leading an annual process of safety culture self-assessment by means of the Safety Culture Forum (SCF).
- Paragraph 3.1.5 defines the Safety Culture Forum as a Safety Culture Enhancement Programme management review forum convened to assess the health of safety culture.
- Paragraph 5.9.2 requires that the Safety Culture Forum consisting of the PSM, his direct reports and other relevant parties, convene on an annual basis during the period of September to November

### **Objective Evidence:**

- There is no evidence that the Power Station Manager has led the 2017 and 2018 annual process of safety culture self-assessment via the Safety Culture Forum (SCF)
- There is no vidence that the Power Station Manager's direct reports have been involved in the 2017 and 2018 annual process of safety culture self-assessment via the Safety Culture Forum (SCF),

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When ledadership do not fulfil assigned responsibilities associated with implementing and maintaining the safety culture enhancement programme, including the relevant monitoring, the required environment to promote and foster

Recurring Nonconformity	Y	, , , , , , ,	11	X	Overall Severit	-	4		3		2	2,2	1	7
Originator:	1	₹ Slm	เดกร	L	Ny gy opigi in the control of the co	Team	Leader		R Simor	iS			h	
Discussed with:	1	\ Step	ohani	V \at	Ntuli	Respo	nse red	uired b	ý:	202	0-04-1-	4		
		COLUMN TO A STATE OF THE PARTY												

### **Honconformity Acknowledgement**

- The Audites acknowledges the validity of the expective evidence documenter above.
  The Audites to please lumish QA within 25 days of issue of this neaconfermity with a proposed corrective action plan using an assessment report as per KGA-084.

3 In addition, action taken to prevent recurrence of the number of the number of the distribution of the assessment.								
Asselled Signature: WRF Cours.	Title: ISED MANAGER	Date: 2020-03-23						
Reportable Nonconformity donifirmation								
The nonconformity is reportable in ligarer of the agreed to	cense grading system: Yns 🖂 No 🕉							
Licensing Signature:	Title: Senior Licenting Engineer	Date: 2020-04-03						

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	51 of 68

### 4.5.9 Nonconformity CR 114006



### Quality Assurance Nonconformity

Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rov	6
Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
Effective Date	June 2019		
Review Date	July 2022		

Monitoring Activity Title	e	Date	Location	
Nuclear Safety Culture		2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station	
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation	
A104	CR 114006	238-6 Rev 4	Nuclear Commercial	

### Nonconformity Description:

Certain Nuclear Commercial Procedures, required for implementing Nuclear Safety Culture, has passed their nextreview dates

### Critoria Description:

238-6 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement, paragraph 3:2, Documentation structure states the following:

- All documents classified as level 2 and 3 shall have a review period of three years.
- Documents at level 4 and 5 shall have a review cycle of up to a maximum of five years.

### Objective Evidence:

- 238-219 Rev 0, Level -1 Supplier Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) Requirements, authorised 2014-06-06, has passed its next review date of November 2016. 238-219 Rev 0 is noted as a Level 3 document
- 238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure, authorised 2016-10-09, has passed its next review date of October 2019, 238-165 Rev 1 is noted as a Level 2 document.

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When controlled documents are not reviewed timeously, there is risk of process noncompliance as practices may have evolved from authorised processes.

Recurring Nonconformity	Y	N	X	Overall Severit Rating	4		3		2	1,3	1	
Originator:	F	R Simons			Team Leader	:	R Simo	ns				
Discussed with	E	Culligan			Response rec	juired l	oy:	202	20-04-1	4		
Alasa sanda a lega X a lang	und in el									Yana kata ka		

### Nonconformity Acknowledgement

- The Auditee acknowledges the validity of the objective evidence documented above.

  The Auditee to please fundsh QA within 25 days of issue of this conconformity with a proposed corrective action plan using an assessment report as per KGA-094.
- In addition, action taken to prevent recurrence of the nonconformity must be identified during the assessment.

Auditee Signature: \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	Tille: San. Men. New, Com	Date: 2020-07-30
Reportable Nonconformity Confirm	átlon	
The nonconformity is reportable in in	par-of the ugreed license grading system: Yes D No 19	ALL MARKET CONTRACTOR OF THE PROPERTY OF THE P
Liconsing Signature:	Titla: Senior Licensing Engineer	Date: 2020-04-01
	4	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	52 of 68

### 4.5.10 Nonconformity CR 114007



### Quality Assurance Nonconformity

Identifier Effective Date	June 2019	1	
Document	240-126198945	Rev	2
Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6

Monitoring Activity	T(tlo	Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Culture		2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation
A104	CR114007	238-165 Rev 1	Nuclear Commercial

### Nonconformity Description:

The quarterly Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings have not been held since 2015.

### Criteria Description:

238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure requires the following:

- Paragraph 3.2.2.2 notes the purpose of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee as follows: "Oversee the compilation, update and execution of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan."
- Paragraph 3.2.4.1 states 'Meetings are held on a quarterly basis.'

### Objective Evidence:

- The Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings have not taken place on a quarterly basis since October 2015.
- There is no evidence that the oversight required during the compilation, update and execution of the Safety
  Culture and Human Performance Plan has taken place via the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human
  Performance Oversight Committee.
- It was confirmed by the Nuclear Commercial Senior Advisor (Business Integration and Support) that there is no Independent/ peer review during the compilation and updating of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan.

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When the required Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee meetings are not held, there is no assurance that the required oversight during the compilation, update and execution of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan is achieved.

Recurring Nonconformity Y	N	X	Overall Severity Rating	A 22-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-12-1	4		3	3,2	2	1	
Originator: R	Simons			Team	Leader.	F	₹ Simo	ns			
Discussed with: B	Culligan			Respo	mse req	uired b	у;	202	20-04-1	4	
Nonconformity Acknowledge	enent										
2 The Audition to please for report as per KGA-094. 3 In addition, action taken to			rce of the nanconfe	amilly in	•	ntilled du	ring the	essessm	ent	ω` <b>λ</b> ο ~♥,}~	
AUGUGG SIGBRUIG: 3											ોું
Audites Signature: Reportable Nonconformity C	onfirmati	on	77107	and a Ferrie de							<u>ક</u> ્રેગ
				aciate (pari							Э́э

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	53 of 68

### 4.5.11 Nonconformity CR 114008

		Template identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
<b>⊕</b> Eskom	Quality Assurance Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945 Re		2
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Effective Date   June 2019			
		Review Date	July 2022		

Monitoring Activity	Title	Date	Location		
Nuclear Safety Culture		2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station		
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity GR number	Criteria	Organisation		
A104	CR 11 4008	238-165 Rev 1	Nuclear Commercial		

### Nonconformity Description:

Certain roles and responsibilities assigned to the Nuclear Commercial Senior Manager, related to the implementation and oversight of the Nuclear Safety Culture Programme, have not been implemented as required.

### Criteria Description:

238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure notes the following Senior Manager: Nuclear Commercial responsibilities:

- Paragraph 2,5.2.3 states: "Establish a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee, and take the role of Chairperson of said committee."
- Paragraph 2.5.2.4 states: "Appoint a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner."
- Paragraph 2.5,2.5: states: "Poriodically analyse the extent of human error as a contributory cause in safety incidents."
- Paragraph 2.5.2,7 states; "Devolve elements of the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan to departmental levels."

### Objective Evidence:

- There is no evidence that the Senior Manager: Nuclear Commercial has maintained and chaired the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Oversight Committee as required.
- There is no evidence that a Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Practitioner has been appointed.
- There is no evidence that the extent of human error as a contributory cause in safety incidents has been periodically analysed.
- There is no evidence that the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan and related actions have been discussed in various Nuclear Commercial management meetings.

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When a leadership does not fulfill assigned responsibilities associated with implementing the safety culture enhancement programme, the required environment to promote and foster a healthy safety culture, may be negatively impacted.

Recurring Nonconformity	Y	N	X	Rating		4		3	4,2	2		1	
Originator.	R Sir	nors			Team	Leader.		R Simon	\$				
Discussed with:	B Cu	illigen			Respo	ក្រពាធិនា ខេត	ed by:		2021	0-04-14			
Nonconformity Ackno	wiedgen	ueart											
report as per KGA 3 In addition, action	094.			5 days of issue of the	emity n		nlified d	ulng the	essesami	ent.	an using : }_o'>o'> (		
Auditee Signature:	100)-			Titla:	-אבל	/* (4x* - )	/Vru.	Leve		Date:	,	<u> </u>	-
Reportable Nonconfo													2004
The nonconformity is re	portable	in temper	or the	agreed foonse grad	ilng sys	tern: Yes I	⊃ No⊠	1					
Licensing Signature;				Title:	Senior	Licensing	Ergine	47 6		Date:	2020-04-0	1	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	54 of 68

### 4.5.12 Nonconformity CR 114009

<b>®</b> Eskom		Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
	Quality Assurance Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
	,13112311137111,13	Effective Date	June 2019		
		Review Date	July 2022		

Monitoring Activity	Title	Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Cult	ure	2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Critoria	Organisation
A104	CR 114009	238-8 Rev 4 KSA-038 Rev 5	Nuclear Commercial

Records related to the Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) and the Management Review process for *Nuclear Commercial*, have either not been identified or appropriately indexed, as required.

### Criteria Description:

238-8 Rey 4, *Nuclear Safety and Quality Manual*, paragraph 3.1.2 related to *Process Management* requires that records, demonstrating that process results have been achieved, be specified in the process documentation. KSA-D38 Rey 5: *Requirements for Quality Records* requires the following

- Paragraphs 5.2.3 and 5.3.2 states that records be identified, indexed and captured on a record retention matrix.
- Paragraph 5.2.3.3 requires that the records retention matrix be reviewed every two years

### Objective Evidence:

- Records related to the Nuclear Commercial SCEP have not been Identified and documented in 238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance procedure, (authorised 2015-10-09) and as a result no SCEP records have been indexed on the authorised QRL (record retention matrix) for the Nuclear Commercial Business Integration and Support group dated, 2016-04-05.
- The details of the Nuclear Commercial Quality Record Listing (QRL) dated 2016-04-05, does not align with the
  record location requirements noted in 238-166 Rev 2, Nuclear Commercial Management Review Committee
  Terms of Reference, paragraph 9, which states that records are to be retained as non-permanent records on the
  Nuclear Commercial workspace on SharePoint.
- It has been confirmed by TD&RM that no waiver request for in-section storage has been received from Nuclear Commercial.
- The authorised QRI. (record retention matrix) for the Nuclear Commercial Business Integration and Support group was last reviewed on 2016-04-05.

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC) When records are not identified and subsequently not archived as required, the organisation may not be able to demonstrate that process outputs have been achieved Overall Severity Recurring Ν 4 3 2 2.2 1 Nonconformity Rating R Simons Team Leader: R Simons Originator: Response required by: Discussed with: B Culligan 2020-04-14 **Nonconformity Acknowledgement**

- 1 The Auditee acknowledges the validity of the objective evidence documented above.
- 2 The Auditee to please furnish QA within 25 days of issue of this nonconformity with a proposed corrective action plan using an assessment report as per KGA-094.
- In addition, action taken to prevent recurrence of the nonconformity must be identified during the assessment.

Auditee Signature:	M	Title: San. Mon. Nuc	. Com	Date: ') 사사 사 76
Reportable Nonconfo	rmity Confirmat	โดก		
The nonconformity is n	eportable in terms	s of the agreed license grading system: Yes C	l No ⊠	
Licensing Signature:		Title: Senior Licensing Engineer	Date:	2020-04-01

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	55 of 68

4.5.13	Nonconformity	CR	114010

Maria es en	N. Commission of the Commissio	Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6
♠ Eskom	Quality Assurance Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2
	,,,di,dbi.idi	Effective Date	Juno 2019		No. of Contract of
		Review Date	July 2022	The state of the s	
			4	-	

Monitoring Activity Title		Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Culti	116	2020-03-20 Koeberg Power Stati	
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation
A104	CR 114010	238-6 Rev 4	Nuclear Project Management

### Nonconformity Description:

Records for Nuclear Project Management (NPM), related to the Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and the Management Review Committee (MRM), have not been indexed on the authorised Quality Record list (QRL) or a Record Retention matrix.

### Criteria Description:

238-6 Rev 4, Nuclear Document and Records Management Requirement requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.1 specifies that records shall be managed through indexing on a Records Retention Matrix (240-43723778). Furthermore, maintaining the Records Retention Matrix on a continual basis and reviewing at prescribed intervals is required.
- Paragraph 6.4 requires that in instances where business areas store their own records, they shall request a
  waiver from TD&RM

### Objective Evidence:

- Records identified in the following NPM procedures have not been indexed on the authorised QRL (Records Retention Matrix) for NPM, dated 2016/06/03 and archived at TD&RM:
  - 1.1. The SCEP (for NPM), 240-119091328 Rev 4 , paragraph 6, identifies the Safety Culture Plan for each year and NPM Safety Culture Committee minutes as non-permanent records to be kept for 2 years internal to NPM on Sharepoint
  - 1.2. The Management Review Procedure (for NPM), 240-119091486 rev 4, paragraph 8.1 identifies that all minutes generated and presentations compiled for the management review session are records which are to be retained for a period of not less than 10 years. The minutes will include presentations and are to be stored on Sharepoint.
  - It was noted that the original hard copy minutes are retained in-section and electronically on Sharepoint. It has been confirmed by TOSRM that no waiver request for in-section storage has been received from NPM.
- 3 The latest authorised QRL was last reviewed in 2016/06/03.

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When records are not indexed and subsequently archived as required, the necessary protection and retrievability of these records may be compromised.

Recurring Nonconformity	Y		N	X	Overall Seve Rating	rity	4		3		2	2,2	1	
Originator:	F	(SIm	ons			Team	Leader	1	R Simo	ns				
Discussed with:	F	Lave	elot			Respo	nse req	มโซติ โ	oy:	202	0-04-1	4		

### Nonconformity Acknowledgement

- 1. The Auditee acknowledges the validity of the objective evidence documented above.
- 2 The Auditee to please furnish QA within 25 days of issue of this conconformity with a proposed corrective action plan using an assessment report as per KGA-094.
- 3 In addition, action taken to prevent recurrence of the nonconformity must be klentified during the assessment

Auditee Signature:	Title: NIM MAUNGIA (AC	nerc) Date: 2024-03-20
Reportable Nonconformity Confirmation		1114 house
The nonconformity is reportable in terms of II	he agreed licensa grading system: Yes D	⊒ No 120
Licensing Signature:	- Title: Sénior Licerising Engineer	Date: 2020-04-03

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	56 of 68

<b>⊗</b> Eskom	Quality As Nonconf			Complate dentifier Document dontifier Effective Date Review Date	240-4392180 240-1261989 June 2019 July 2022		ļ	
Monitoring Activity Tit	le		Date		Loca	tion		
Nuclear Safety Culture		20	020-03-	20	Kocherg Po	wer Static	'n	
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number		Criteria		Organi	sation	хņ	
A104 CE11401	NE-NEO1 draft 3 (A)	⊃ 23	88-8 Re\	/ 4	Nuclear Er	gineering	)	
Nonconformity Descri	otlon:							
	nonstrate that the <i>Nuclear</i> or reviewed, has either no							
Criteria Description:								
records, demonstrating KSA-038 Rev 5 Regulre	nfety and Quality Manual, that process results have ments For Quality Record levant procedures that ge	been achievi Is, paragraph	ed, be s 16.1.2.3	pacified in the p	process docume	entation		
Objective Evidence:	lear Engineering Safety C					-		
Paragraph 7.5.2 stat 2. Action tlats are not to (2020/03/02). 3. The current Nuclear	(02) does not specify any es: 'No minutes will be to tentified on the current Nu Engineering/ Engineering of the NE SCEP process.	kon, bul an e Iclear Engloc	etion ils earing/ E	t will be mainta ingineering Sul	oport Record re	ention ma	itrix	
4. It was observed at ti Safety Culture Enha	ne time of 331-8 rev 0 app ricement Plan and all Safe I the QRL applicable at th	sty Culture A	,556\$\$ID	eni resulta wer	e to be kept as i	permanen	t	
the retention period	Engineering/ Engineering for Management review m hese records to be retaine	reeting minut	tes while	the previous r	ecord retention		ify	
similarly the Manage	e that Management review iment Committee meeting	meeting min minutes hav	nutes ha ve not be	ave been archa een archived in	red KIS location KIS location M	MC 1.4.2 C 1.4.12.	and	
Justification: (Justifica	7							
When records are not id demonstrate that process	entified and subsequently s outputs have been achi	not archived eved.	d as requ	uired, II may be	difficult for the	organisati	on lo	
Recurring Y Nonconformity	N X Overall S	everity	4	3	2 2,:	1		
Originator: R	Simons	Team L	eader.	R Simons				
Discussed with Li	Lukwe	Respons	se requi	red by:	2020-04-14			
<ol> <li>The Auditee to plear action plan using an</li> </ol>	Modgement Medges the validity of the se furnish QA within 25 da assessment report as pe iken to prevent ecurrence	nys of issue o r KGA-094. e of the nonc	on eicht to onformit	onconformity wi y must be iden	th a proposed c tifled during the	assessm		
Auditee Signature:	MULLE	Title:	: Enc	s Supp Mi	DIVINEY Da	te,QOQO	[03]	
	Market Commence	- Commence of the Commence of		The second secon				
Reportable Nonconfor	mity Confirmation		~~~		•			
	milty Confirmation portable in learns of the ag	reed (cense	grading	system: Yes D	i No 🕸		J	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
·	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	57 of 68

### 4.5.15 Nonconformity CR 114012

<b>⊕</b> Eskom		Assurance nformity	Template Identifier Document Identifier Effective Date Review Date	240-43921804 240-126108945 June 2019 July 2022	Rev Rev	2
Monitoring Activity Titl	e		Dato	Location	1	
Nuclear Safety Culture		202	0-03-20	Koeberg Power	Statlo	n
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	y Griteria Organ			ол	
A104	CR 114012	331-6	99 Rev 1	Nucloar Engin	coring	
Nonconformity Descrip	ition:					
Not all the <i>Nuclear Engli</i> held for the period, April			rmance Commillee	quarterly meetings l	iave be	en
Criteria Description:						
331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Reference paragraph 7				illee Meeting Term	s of	The second second second
Objective Evidence:	Marie Control of the	<u> </u>				
of two of the four sch for the period, April 2 According to the NE	ear Engineering Safety edulad <i>Nuclear Engine</i> 019 to March 2020, Tr NSC HP Plan 2019/20 ovember 2019, were n	eering Safety Cull hese were held o 20, the meetings	<i>ure and Human Perl</i> r 2019-05-02 and 20	ormance Committe 20-02-18	e meeti	ings
Justification: (Justifica	tion for rating of NC)					
When the prescribed am			ure and Human Pert	ormance Commille		
are not held, the desired	enhancement of Nuclo	ығ шоділевтір а				
Recurring Nonconformity	·	Savarity I				
Recurring Y	N Overall	Savarity I	afety Culture Progra	mme, may not be a	chieved	1
Recurring Y Nonconformity Y Originator: R	N X Overall Rating	Severity Team Lea	afety Culture Progra	mme, may not be a	chieved	1
Recurring Y Onginator: R : Discussed with: L L Nonconformity Acknow	N Overall Rating Simons .ukwe vledgement	Soverity Team Lea Response	afety Culture Progra  3 der R Simons required by:	2 2020-04-14	chieved	1
Recurring Nonconformity  Onginalor:  Discussed with:  L L  Nonconformity Acknow  1 The Auditee acknow  2 The Auditee to pleas action plan using an and in addition, action ta Auditee Signature;	N Coverall Rating Simons Lukwe Viedgement Fedges the validity of the furnish QA within 25 assessment report as ken to-prevent-recurrent	Team Lea Response to objective evide days of Issue of per KGA-094.	afety Culture Progra  I 3 Ider R Simions required by:  noe documented about this nonconformity w	2 2020-04-14  2020-04-14  Dive tified during the ess	1 ctive	1,2
Recurring Nonconformity  Originator:  Discussed with:  L L  Nonconformity Acknow  The Auditee acknow  The Auditee to pleas action plan using an an addition, action ta Auditee Signature;  Reportable Nonconform	N Overall Rating Simons Likwe Viedgement ledges the validity of the furnish QA within 25 assessment raport as ken to-prevent recurrent the furnish QA within 25 assessment raport as ken to-prevent recurrent the furnish QA within Confirmation	Team Lea Response to objective evide days of Issue of per KGA-094 nce of the noncor Title:	afety Culture Progra  der R Simons required by:  noe documented abouts nonconformity w formity must be iden Eng Surp Map	2 2020-04-14  2020-04-14  ove tified during the ess (16) (17) Date:	1 ctive	1,2
Recurring Nonconformity Y  Onginator: R  Discussed with: L L  Nonconformity Acknow  1 The Auditee acknow  2 The Auditee to pleas action plan using an  3 In addition, action ta	N Overall Rating Simons Likwe Viedgement ledges the validity of the furnish QA within 25 assessment raport as ken to-prevent recurrent the furnish QA within 25 assessment raport as ken to-prevent recurrent the furnish QA within Confirmation	Team Lea Response to objective evide days of Issue of per KGA-094 nce of the noncor Title:	afety Culture Progra  der R Simons required by:  noe documented about the nonconformity w formity must be iden ENG Supp Magn	2 2020-04-14  2020-04-14  ove tified during the ess (16) (17) Date:	1 ective	1,2

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	58 of 68

### 4.5.16 Nonconformity CR 114013

		Template Identifier	240-43921804	Rev	6	
⊕Eskom	Quality Assurance Nonconformity	Document Identifier	240-126198945	Rev	2	
		Effective Date	June 2019			
		Review Date	July 2022			

Monitoring Activity	Title	Date	Location
Nuclear Safety Cultu	ıra	2020-03-20	Koeberg Power Station
Monitoring activity number	Nonconformity CR number	Criteria	Organisation
A104	CR 114013	331-499 Rev 1	Nuclear Engineering

### Nonconformity Description:

There is no evidence that the NE Safety culture and HP Charperson has endorsed the action lists stemming from the Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee meetings for the period April 2018 to March 2020.

### Criteria Description:

331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference requires the following:

- Paragraph 5.2.5 states: 'The Chairperson shall: volidate NE Safety Culture and HP Committee actions are true representation of what was discussed:
- Paragraph 5.3.1 states: The NE Safety Culture and HP secretorial shall: compile and distribute actions that stemmed from the meeting after they have been reviewed and endorsed by the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson.

### Objective Evidence:

- There is no evidence that the NE Safety culture and HP Chairperson has reviewed and endorsed the action lists, for the following two meetings, prior to these action lists being distributed to members of the committee
  - 02 May 2019
  - 19 February 2020

### Justification: (Justification for rating of NC)

When action lists are not endorsed and validated by the NE Safety Culture and HP chairperson, it cannot be assured that the actions stemming from these meetings are a true representation of what was discussed.

Recurring Nonconformity	Y		N	Χ	Overall Severi Rating	ty	4		3		2	1,2	1	
Originator	F	Slm	ons		-	Team	Leader:		R Simo	ns				
Discussed with:	L	Luky	ve		ı	Respo	nse req	uired t	зу:	202	20-04-1	4		
Nonconformity A			Contract of the last of the la	_	initia of the object	Mica co	مممم	. da a		*No.10				

- The Auditee ecknowledges the validity of the objective evidence documented above
- The Auditee to please (umish QA within 25 days of Issue of this nonconformity with a proposed corrective action plan using an assessment report as per KGA-094.

  In addition, action taken the newent recurrence of the nonconformity must be identified during the assessment

Auditee Signature:	() [[] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] [] []	Title: ENG Sur	r Moneger	Date: 2020/04
Reportable Nonconformity	Confirmation			
The nonconformity is reporta	ble in terms of the agreed	license grading system:	Yes □ No 🖾	
Licensing Signature:	· Title:	Senior Licensing Engineer	Date:	2020-04-03

Revision         0           Controlled Disclosure         Fage         59 of 68	Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
ed Disclosure		Revision	0
	ed Disclo	Page	59 of 68

## 4.5.16 Detailed Observations

Number	Description	Responsible Group
AU 39424-	The establishment and integration of a security culture programme, as part of the overall nuclear safety programme, is not evident in the NOU IMS and has therefore not been cascaded into the safety programmes established by various Business areas.  1) 238-28 Rev 3, Nuclear Safety Management Programme references normative and informative documentation that explicitly notes the consideration of security culture, however 238-28 does not define any roles and responsibilities or defines specific requirements as it relates to security culture. These documents are as follows: a)32-83, Eskom Nuclear Management Policy b)IAEA GSR Part 2, Leadership and Management for Safety c)RG-0007, Regulatory Guide on Management of Safety Note: 238-28 only mentions 'security consciousness' in the scope of the document	NON NON
	<ol> <li>2) Furthermore, no reference to security culture was evident during the review of the following business area Safety Culture Enhancement Programmes:         <ul> <li>a) Nuclear Commercial documented in 238-165 Rev 1, Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Procedure.</li> <li>b) Nuclear Project Management documented in 240-119091328 rev 5, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme.</li> <li>c) Koeberg Power Station documented in KAA-850 Rev 0, Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme.</li> <li>d) Nuclear Engineering has withdrawn 331-8 Rev 0, Safety Culture Enhancement Programme and replaced their process document with 331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference. Both these documents do not refer to security culture.</li> </ul> </li> <li>3) It was stated by the Nuclear Services Manager that a Security Plan which is an element of security culture is in place. Based on the classification of this information, only elements were verified. Furthermore, the Nuclear Services Manager indicated that even though exill required integrated into Security practices, security culture within the wider programments of security culture have been integrated into Security practices, security culture within the wider programments of security culture have been integrated into Security practices.</li> </ol>	
AU 39424- 002 QA	In order to effectively implement the NEXCO endorsed nuclear safety culture health indicators which is needed to measure the status of the established Eskom Nuclear Objective, may require further consolidation and review in order to ensure that business area KPIs are aligned and are able to support this overall NOU health measurement.  It was noted that the health of the nuclear safety culture is not explicitly addressed as a measurement in 238-179 Rev 2 (Nuclear Operating Unit Key performance indicators) used to monitor the achievement of the Eskom Nuclear Objectives  While 240-108035478 Rev 2, The Eskom Nuclear Objectives in turn refers to Nuclear Culture (Safety and Security) as part Objective — Organisational Effectiveness documented in section 2.3.3.  In reviewing the following NEXCO endorsed indicators to measure nuclear safety culture health across the NOU, it would be	NOU-

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	60 of 68

	prudent to ensure that all the aspects identified, can be applied and measured consistently across business areas in order to provide and overall health measurement to satisfy the nuclear objective of Organisational Effectiveness as it relates to Nuclear Culture (Safety and Security):  The following elements were identified as aspects to be measured: Staff engagement; Observation Programme Health; CAP Health; Leadership Programme; Self-assessments; Nuclear Safety Concerns.	
	Furthermore it should be noted that a previous QA finding (CR95398 and AU36318-001 QA) noted in 2016 highlighted that key performance indicators were not defined or implemented across the NOU, to gauge the strength of Nuclear Safety culture health. Therefore resolution in this regard, by ensuring alignment as well as effective and efficient implementation will resolve this area previously noted as deficient.	
AU 39424- 003 QA	The NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-28 Rev 3, has not documented in sufficient detail, the requirements assigned at the level of functional area to ensure consistent implementation and compliance to Safety Culture Enhancement Programme (SCEP) requirements, when compared to revision 2 and revision 1 of the same	
	document.  The following inconsistencies were noted in the various functional areas:  1. The management of SCEP records across the functional areas differs between functional areas. Examples have been noted where no records are being identified and maintained to instances where various records are being	<del></del>
	O 33 C	
	actions stemming from these self-assessments, while other functional areas perform focused Safety culture assessments and identify appropriate actions for the specific functional area, thereby enhancing the functional area's safety culture plan.	
	3. The application of key performance indicators across the functional areas are also noted as inconsistent or not aligned in order to support a wider NOU NSC health measurement.	
	4. Furthermore gaps have been noted that apply to the establishment and implementation of Safety Culture Forum, at the NOU level which may assist in ensuring alignment to SCEP requirements across the NOU.	
	5. Furthermore it was noted all previous prescription regarding Level 1 suppliers and their sub-suppliers, have now been omitted from the current revision, which was documented in the previous revisions of 238-28.	
AU 39424- 004 QA	The NOU Safety Culture forum does not retain meeting minutes or action lists thereby impacting the ability to demonstrate that various SC & HP practitioners have participated in a single NOU forum which may be key in promoting	
	alignment as it relates to SCEP initiatives across the NOU. It was not nossible to retrieve meeting minutes for the KOH Safety Culture for meetings half during the period, 2017 to	
	2019. Although it was stated by various SC & HP practitioners and the previous Nuclear Safety Culture Advisor that the KOU Safety Culture forum meetings were held on a quarterly basis, no meeting minutes or action lists are retained to substantiate these	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	61 of 68

	statements. As a result in cannot be determined the extent of participation from other business areas across the KOU and whether the objective of the forum has been met.
AU 39424- 005 QA	Specific leading and lagging indicators to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment, have not been defined in the Nuclear Safety Management Programme, 238-8 Rev 3 and has therefore has not been cascaded consistently into the Safety programmes established by various Business areas.  All the business area Safety Culture Enhancement Programmes reviewed have not specified the leading and lagging indicators to be used when performing a safety culture self-assessment. The only exception to this anomaly is noted in KAA-850, Rev 0, Koeberg Nuclear Power Station Safety Culture Enhancement Programme, paragraph 5.7 Safety Culture Surveys and Monitoring. By not defining the type of leading and lagging indicators to be used across the wider organisation, has resulted in inconsistent implementation of the RD-0034 requirement noted paragraph (122) which requires that a systematic process for monitoring safety culture within level 1 organisation's be established, using suitable leading and lagging indicators, and qualitative information. Note that the previous revision of 238-28 Rev 1, authorised 2013/12/12, had included the requirement for leading and lagging indicators to be used during the annual process of safety culture assessments.
AU 39424- 006 QA	The current methodology applied during the compilation of the 2017 and 2018 Nuclear Safety Culture Self-assessment, has not incorporated or considered the IAEA industry guidance/best practice as it relates to the execution and follow-up of nuclear safety culture self-assessments.  I. AEA Setty Guide GS-G-3. The Management System for Nuclear Installation, a supporting guide to GSR- Part 2. Leadership and Management for Safety, identifies the following guidelines when implementing Safety culture self-assessments:  1. The self-assessment of safety culture should include the entire organisation. The 2017 and 2018 Safety culture self-assessment sonsisted of two team members who reviewed condition reports raised on Devonway.  2. A designated team representing all organisational levels and functions at the installation should carry out the self-assessment. The 2017 and 2018 Safety culture self-assessment consisted of two team members.  3. A specialist in safety culture should be included in the team for ensuring that appropriate assessment tools are developed and applied, as well as for carrying out an analysis of the results (including a statistical analysis of the results of questionnaires) and their interpretation.  4. The self-assessment team should receive training in how to develop the assessment tools and in the steps to be considered in the assessment process.  5. The focus groups should include cross-functional representatives and/or representatives from an organization unit. There should be enough focus groups to obtain a realistic assessment of the entire organization.  6. A follow-up assessment should be performed, account being taken of the time needed for improvement actions to have their full effect on the safety culture.  Although not applying all IAEA industry guidelines may be feasible, an attempt to follow best practice is recommended.
AU 39424- 007 QA	All the actions and recommendations identified during the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey as well as the 2018  Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment, have not been captured on Devonway as related items or additional actions.  Although it is noted that the survey is executed by an external supplier and the report may not strictly be a self-assessment,

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	62 of 68

	∩ 0 N
Actions related to self-assessments, whether general or corrective in nature are required to be appropriately assigned in order to ensure actions are tracked to completion. When actions are not visible to the wider organisation and the assigned owners, the following impact may be experienced:  • The assigned action owners are unaware of actions and related expectations; • The organisation may not be able to continuously track actions during implementation up until appropriate closure. • Furthermore if actions are not loaded in such a portal as Devonway, the validation of actions closed and the follow-up effectiveness review of these actions may not be possible. In order to ensure actions are appropriately assigned and tracked to completion, may necessitate raising these actions, whether general or corrective in nature on Devonway. When actions are not visible to the wider organisation and to the assigned owners, the organisation may be challenge the continuous tracking of actions during implementation up until appropriate closure.  Furthermore if actions are not loaded in such a portal as Devonway, the validation of actions closed and the follow-up effectiveness review of these actions may not be possible.  The 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture survey, SE35133 titled, Focused SE 57722 Nuclear Safety Culture survey captured as SE 57722 was noted. SE 57722 titled, Nuclear Safety Culture assessment (NNR Progress report 2016) was initiated and closed 2017/06/06. No actions have been loaded on Devonway even though six strategic actions were recorded in the report. A second entry for the 2016 Nuclear Safety Culture Safety Culture 2016 second on 2019/06/11. No actions have been loaded on Devonway even though six strategic actions were recorded in the report. As link to the report, has been loaded on Devonway even though six strategic actions were recorded in the report. A link to the report thas been provided. There is no evidence that the relevant manager would be able to determine if all actions identified during the 2018	<ul> <li>Nuclear Safety Culture self-assessment report, have been tracked to completion based on the SE item Devonway data available.</li> <li>Resolution of certain actions and recommendations identified during the 2017 NSC self-assessment and reported in 2018 (SE 37932) have not been timeously completed, based on Devonway data reviewed.</li> <li>According to a Devonway Query (2020-03-11) certain actions associated with the self-assessment completed in 2017 have not all been closed and are indicated as overdue on Devonway</li> <li>The following two actions have been noted as overdue:         <ul> <li>SE 37932-006 GA (Raised: 2018/11/13 &amp; Due date 2019/04/30) - Assess current proficiency levels in all areas across the NOU. (SGM)</li> <li>SE 37932-007 GA (Raised: 2018/11/13 &amp; Due date 2019/04/30) - Develop and Implement customised leadership training to address the following behaviours: Accountability, Trust and Respect (ISE DR)</li> <li>According to the same Devonway query, the following two actions remain open with noted dues dates in the future:</li></ul></li></ul>
	AU 39424- 008 QA

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	63 of 68

	the formalised structures. (PSM) b) SE 37932-005 GA (Raised: 2018/11/13 & Due date: 2020/05/31): Develop and Implement formalised handover process as it relates to stand-in/acting management positions (PSM).	
AU 39424- 009 QA	238-128 Rev 3, Management Review Standard has not documented sufficient detail regarding the record retention Strategy and requirements to demonstrate compliance to ISO 9001:2015 and RD-0034 requirements.	pu
	Keeping the following requirements in mind, it was observed that inconsistencies were noted in the retention periods assigned to Management Review Meeting minutes across the NOU. Examples include, either six years, 10 years and some instances the retention periods are undefined.	-
	ISO 9001:2015 states; 'The organization shall retain documented information as evidence of the results of management reviews.'  While RD-0034 Rev 0, Quality and Safety Management Requirements for Nuclear Installations, paragraph (45) states: 'A management review process must be established within the organisations toensure that an evaluation of the efficiency and effectiveness of the management system with respect to the requirements of this RD is done.'	
AU 39424- 010 QA	Clarity regarding the various types of safety culture plans adopted within KNPS and NOU is required to ensure that KNPS configuration is maintained and the current safety culture plan is always updated and accessible.	
	When the safety culture plans for KNPS were requested, two different Excel spreadsheets were provided to the auditor, depicting KNPS safety culture plans 2018-2019.	
	The following safety culture plans were provided:  1. KNPS Nuclear Safety Culture Plan 2018-2019 (Rev 0a) - noted seven elements such as: Safety Culture Awareness and Communication; Individual Awareness/Questioning Attitude; Safety Leadership; Audits and Reviews (Internal and External); Safety Culture Surveys and Monitoring: Continuous Improvement (Learning from Events): Control of Safety Culture	
	Enhancement (Safety Culture Steering Committee)  2. Nuclear Safety Culture Plan- Koeberg Power Station 2018/2019 - ( no revision noted) contained Nuclear safety culture report	
	actions for the following categories: Organisational, leadership and Individual categories It is also uncertain how often certain KNPS and NOU Safety culture plans have been updated since no revision/version control has	
	been applied on a sample of safety plans provided and reviewed during the audit.  1) The following safety culture plans were provided from a number of individuals in preparation of the audit:	
	a) KNPS Nuclear Safety Culture Plan 2018-2019 (Rev 0a) – provide by NSEG individual b) Nuclear Safety Culture Plan- Koeberg Power Station 2018/2019 -  no revision noted – provided by the former NOU Safety	
	culture acting manager c) Nuclear Safety Culture Plan- Koeberg Operating Unit 2018/2019 - no revision noted – provided by the former NOU Safety	
	culture acting manager d) Nuclear Safety Culture Plan- Koeberg Operating Unit 2019/2020 - no revision noted - provided by ISED manager Note arranged Of English (OC 70525) noted in 2012 also bishlighted that revision or control for safety, culture plans were not	
	Note previous QA minding (GC 70323) noted in 2013 also ingringrited mat revision/ charige control to safety curiate plans were not implemented.	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	64 of 68

	KNPS-
not identified using the trending mechanisms available through Devonway and guidance provided in KGA-078, Coaching and Job Observation at Koeberg Nuclear Power Station, in order to ensure that human performance strategies for improvement are determined.  A total of (ninety-three) of HPOC Departmental Feedback forms were reviewed in order to determine if trend data was appropriately assessed and used to identify potential adverse trends.  It was also observed that the process of collecting and forming meaningful insights from observation cards may be negatively impacted by line groups bypassing Devonway controls by entering "fullstops" in the comment field, when needed, instead of valueadding comments. This practice was pervasive in certain groups assessed during this review.  It has also been noted that the Devonway portal can facilitate effective trending but when attention to detail and information is deliberately omitted, the data recorded may not fully support meaningful data analysis.  Even though the current HPOC Departmental Feedback form does allow for related information to be captured. What may be lacking is the critical review and assessment of the Observation data available.  Besides trending from the Station CAR process, which results in adverse trends being identified and common cause assessments being performed, the CAPI NSEG trending capacity is limited due to the station quarterly trend report or similar report not being compiled. It was also observed that KAA-828 Rev O Trending at Koeberg Power Station has been withdrawn in 2019/02/27 which potentially may turther diminish the trending capability/function provided by NSEG.	Certain actions and recommendations identified during the common cause assessment (SE 38585) titled, Self-Assessment of Recent Plant Events Related to Human Performance, have not been loaded on Devonway, based on the Devonway data reviewed  The self-assessment was initiated 2019/07/19 and was closed on 2019/10/21.  Based on a comparison of actions documented in the self-assessment report, which was endorsed by the Plant and/ or ISED Managers, and the report generated from Devonway (2020/03/02 and 2020/03/11), it was evident that the following actions were identified in the report but were not captured in Devonway.  1) Actions 6.1 to 6.9 – Related to groups performing a needs analysis on HP training for their specific group (Due date: 2019/12/15)  2) Action 7- Amend HP KPI's to reflect input from the HP forum, PSC forum and PSR forum (Due date 2020/01/31)  3) Action 8- Appoint a station HP custodian (Due date: 2019/12/15)  Self-assessment actions related to self-assessments, whether general or corrective in nature are required to be appropriately assigned in order to ensure actions are tracked to completion. When actions are not visible to the wider organisation and the assigned owners, the following impact may be experienced:  The assigned action owners are unaware of actions and related expectations;  The organisation may not be able to continuously track actions during implementation up until appropriate closure.
AU 39424-	AU 39424- 012 QA

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	65 of 68

	• Furthermore if actions are not loaded in such a portal as Devonway, the validation of actions closed and the follow-up	
	_	
AU 39424-	sted in 240-119091328	Nuclear
013 QA		Project
	ptermoet ZO 19, felefieldes NGA-095, Wilcit has been withdrawn since ZO 19-02-19. The	ייומוומטמוומות
	reference to KGA-093 has been referenced in paragraph z.z.z and as part of the informative references and in the body of the I document paragraph 3.1 dealing with Individual Awareness/Questioning Attitude.	
AU 39424-	dealth assessments planned and executed were included in the FY2019 and FY2020	Nuclear
014 QA		Project
	of any	Management
	NSC Self-assessments recently completed within NPM. During the NPMSCC meeting held on Friday 2020/02/28, it was	
	mentioned by a member of the committee that a Safety culture self-assessment related to willingness of suppliers to raise	
	concerns, was completed. The following details related to this self-assessment was noted: Date of SE: 2019/02/18, unique SE	
	number: SE 3813U and title, Seir-assessment on the Contractor Evaluation criteria. Four identified actions were noted on	
	Devonway .	
	In reviewing the plans it was observed that typically an entry only noting 'SC health Assessment' was recorded for NS self-	
	assessments. Since the SCEP Co-ordinator has only been appointed since May 2019, if the details of this self-assessment was	
	noted on the plan, the individual would have been able to review and demonstrate the completion of the NSC self-assessment	
AU 39424-	The frequency of the NPM Safety Culture Committee meetings have not been defined in 240-119091328 rev 5, Safety	Nuclear
015 QA		Project
	egularly to	Management
AU 39424-	Resolution of Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan actions, have not been timeously	Nuclear
016 QA		Commercial
	A sample of forty-five Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan (2017-2020) actions were reviewed and it	
	was observed that certain actions important to the Nuclear commercial core business and issues currently requiring attention,	
	Culture and Human Performance Plan and Devonway.	
	Examples include:	
	1) Create awareness of safety culture with suppliers at supplier forums. There is no objective evidence that this action was	
	completed for FY2019 and FY2020. Only the action for FY2018 was indicated as completed.	
	Furthermore certain Periodic Safety Culture and Human Performance self-assessments were noted as in progress or have been	
	rolled over from year to year.	
	A total of seven different periodic Safety Culture and Human Performance assessments (nine entries) were identified and planned	
	across the three NC Safety Culture and Human Performance Plans reviewed. Of the open Self-assessment actions, the self -	
	assessment, SE35232, titled, The availability of spares has been rolled over from the 2017/2016 plan and still remains open on	

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	66 of 68

	the current Nuclear Commercial Safety Culture and Human Performance Plan (2019/2020).  It was also noted that SE35232 has an initiated date of 2015/09-02 on Devonway and still remains open, with a due date of 2020/22/28, which was overdue at the time of conducting this audit.  According to the plans reviewed, only four of these seven actions have been completed. (Note the closure of these actions was verified on Devonway).	
AU 39424- 017 QA	wing the Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement procedure 331-8 Rev 0, while ensuring equirements, may not have been holistically assessed.  enerated from the period 2014-02-27 to 2019-07-15 when 331-8 Rev 0, The Nuclear Engineering Safety rocedure was applicable, are no longer being managed as a records. Records have not been stipulated e, used to manage the aspects of the Nuclear Engineering SCEP.  plicability, it was required that each year's Safety Culture Enhancement Plan and all Safety Culture plicability, it was required that each year's Safety Culture Enhancement Plan and all Safety Culture et to be kept as permanent records. In reviewing the QRL applicable at that time, it was confirmed that the indexed and archived at the time when 331-8 Rev 0 was enforced	Nuclear Engineering
	In light of the anomalies noted in the current revision of the NOU Nuclear Safety Management Programme, withdrawing 331-8 Rev 0, The Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture Enhancement and replacing it with 331-499 Rev 1, Nuclear Engineering Safety Culture and Human Performance Committee Meeting Terms of Reference may potentially have weakened the process required demonstrate Safety Culture Programme implementation.	
AU 39424- 018 QA	It is uncertain how often the NE Safety culture plans for the period 2017 to 2019 have been updated since no revision/version control has been applied for NE SC and HP plan.  One version of a plan was provided for each financial year for the period 2017-2019. Although a status column had been added and presumably updated, there was no further indication of the plan being updated such as revisions/ versions or date annotation to suggest multiple updates. As a result, it is difficult to demonstrate that the plan has been updated periodically since there is no indication when plans were initiated and subsequently updated.	Nuclear Engineering
AU 39424- 019 QA	Culture and Human Performance Committee may not meet the nereby its performance and effectiveness for the period	Nuclear Engineering

AND THE PARTY OF T		
tle: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	67 of 68

# 4.5.17 Detailed Effectiveness Review

Date created	Number	Description	Resolved/ Requires attention/ Not applicable
Nonconformities			
2016/11/25	CR 95398	QANC: Assessment and measurement of the Nuclear Safety Culture (NSC) strength is not performed consistently within the KOU business areas as required.	Requires attention See items listed below
		<ol> <li>Annual self-assessments of NSC has not been implemented consistently across the KOU (Nuclear Commercial; Nuclear Project Management, Nuclear Engineering and Nuclear Support)</li> </ol>	Requires attention AU 39424-003 QA
		2. KPIs related to NSC have not been defined or implemented consistently across the KOU to gauge the strength of NSC (Nuclear Engineering, Nuclear Commercial)	Requires attention AU 39424-002 QA
		3. An annual Safety Culture Council meeting at KOU level which includes all Functional Areas (FAs) has not taken place for 2015 / 2016	Requires attention AU 39424-004 QA
OBSERVATIONS			
2016/11/25	AU36318- 001QA	A consolidated set of NSC safety indicators have not been defined at KOU level to holistically make visible weakness within the functional areas which may impact on KNPS safety management objectives.	Requires attention AU 39424-002 QA
2016/11/25	AU36318- 002QA	R106 QA OBS: Nuclear Safety Culture (NSC) initiatives related to NSC plans across functional areas are not holistically assessed due to the KOU level committees and forums not being implemented.	Requires attention AU 39424-004 QA
2016/11/25	AU36318- 003QA	R106 QA OBS: 3. Anomalies have been noted relating to the compilation of 238-28 and the interpretation of requirements	Requires attention AU 39424-001 QA

Title: Nuclear Safety Culture	Number	A104/AU 39424
	Revision	0
Controlled Disclosure	Page	68 of 68

Date created	Number	Description	Resolved/ Requires attention/ Not applicable
LEGACY ISSUES			
2013/10/25	GC 78534	QAOBS: There is no clear definition as to what constitutes NSC KPI's	Resolved
2013/10/25	GC 78527	QAOBS: The term SCEP is being used interchangeably to describe both the programme and the plan	Resolved
2013/10/25	GC 78532	QAOBS: There is no evidence to indicate that any corrective actions stemming from the 2010 Nuclear safety culture survey had been implemented within the KOU.	Requires attention- AU 39424-007 QA
2013/10/25	GC 78530	QAOBS: There is currently no oversight NSC committee within the KOU.	Requires attention AU 39424-004 QA
2013/10/25	GC 78541	QAOBS:The CA 30513 tracking the safety culture survey project does not reflect the current status of the listed actions. Examples are PR 107 1290773 has been closed on SAP and replaced with PR1071349659, and it also does not reference the Letter K-209	Not applicable
2013/10/25	GC 78525	QAOBS:There were certain SCEPs (plans) that did not have a revision on them (change control).	Requires attention AU 39424-010 QA AU 39424-018 QA
2013/10/31	GC 78648	QAOBS:There is a lack of guidance as to when a full rollout of the requirements of 238-28 is required or when only specific elements are required to be adopted	Requires attention AU 39424-003 QA
	GC 78545	NONCONFORMITY DESCRIPTION. There is no formal training programme for nuclear safety culture within the KOU. CRITERIA DESCRIPTION: 238-28 Rev 0, para 8.1.3 states "More detailed safety culture training and awareness shall be given to personnel who OBJECTIVE EVIDENCE	Not applicable
		1. There is no training programme available at KNPS or the KOU BA's. limited training to their staff based on their interpretation of what is required.	Not applicable
		2. There are only certain elements of nuclear safety culture training available, such as HP training NPM presents	Not applicable